Independent auditors’ report |

The Board of Directors and Owner
Korea Nationat Qi Corporation

We have audited the accompanying statements of financial position of Korea National Ol Corporation {the “Company”) as of
December 31, 2008 and 2008, and the refated statements of income, appropiiations of retained earnings, changss in equity
and cash flows for the years then ended, alf expressed in Korean won. These financial statements are the responsibility of the
Company's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of Korea. Those
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overal financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits
provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above expressed in Korean won present fairly, in all matefial respects, the
financial position of Korea National Oil Corporation as of December 31, 2009 and 2008, and the resulis of its operations, its
changes in retalned earnings and equity and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
for government-contiolled corporations, as issued by the Ministry of Strategy and Finance of the Republic of Korea.

We have also reviewed the translation of the accompanying financial statements mentioned above into United States dollar
amounts on the basis described in Note 2 to the accompanying financial statements. In our opinion, such statements have
been propatly transtated on such basis,

Accourding principles and auditing standards and their application in practice vary among countries. The accompanying
financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles for government-controlled corporations in
the Republic of Korea and are not intended to present the financial position, results of operations, changes in retained
earnings and equity and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles and practices generally accepted in countries
other than the Republic of Korea. In addition, the procedures and practices utifized in the Republic of Korea to audi such
financial staferments may differ from those generally accepted and applied in other countries. Accordingly, this report and
the accompanying financial statements are for use by those who are knowledgeable abolt accounting principles for Korean
government-controlled corporations and Korean auditing standards and their applicatior: in practice.

February 18, 2010

This audit report is effective as of February 18,2010, the independent auditors' report date. Accordingly, certain material subsequent events or circumstances may
have occurred during the period from the auditors’ report date to the time this audit report is used, Such events and circumstances could significantly affect the
accompanying financia statements and may result in modifications to this report,
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Statements of financial position |

[

Korea Naticnal Gil Corporation

{Korean won and US dollars in thousands)

Korean won

LiS dollars Mote?)

2009

2008

2009 2008

Assats
Current assats:

Cash and cash equivalents faie 16

Short-term financial instrumenits

Trade accounts receivable, net of allowance
for doubtful account of W2,828,061
in 2009 and ¥14,521,243 In 2008
Notes 14, 16 and 17)

Short-term loang Males 8 18ard 17}

Other accounts recelvable, net of allawance
for doubtful account of Wa11,802 in 2009
and nil in 2008 Hote18)

Inventories Moes 4awd 8

Derivative assets Mot 20

Deferred income tax assets Mie28

Other currunt agsetg MotesSad 18

Total cLrrent assets

Non-clerent assets:

Long-term financial instruments

Avaiable-for-sale securitias Moo

Equity method investrments fotes7 and 18;

Long-term loans, net of alflowance for
douttful accounts of W12,842,072
in 2009 and ¥14,080,055 in 2008
{otes 16.and 17}

Loans to affilates, net NeesB e 19

Property, plant and equipment, net Hes

Intangibie agsety Motes 10ad 19

Long-term trade accounts receivable, net of
alowance for doubtful account of
WE,070,544 In 2009 and Wi0,378,841
in 2008 Fic 11

Long-termn guarantee deposils

Defarred income tax assets ®0# 23

Long-term other accounts receivable, net of
allowance for doubtiuf of W10,236,380
in 2009 and nll in 2008

Other non-cuirent assets Motesd, 1 and 15

Total non-curent assets

Total assefs

w 957821213 W 1,695,119237 § 820,162 5 1,452,654
317,237,500 150,100,000 271,700 128,554
428,738,492 164,009,730 367,196 140,467
244,031,189 264,184,278 209,002 226,263

73,627,328 100,335,463 82,973 85,933
2,728,820,518 2,512,668,134 2,336,948 2,151,994
32,293,861 184,761,024 27,663 158,240

- 33,965,761 - 29,000

101,058,822 78,708,823 86,556 65,702
4,883,135,923 5,182,860,450 4,182,200 4,438,897
2,000,600 - 1,713 -
46,979,032 45,022,277 40,236 38,5659
3,894,539,006 15,884,660 3,335,508 13,604
2,227,913,704 2,211,631,429 1,908,114 1,894,168
350,493,208 321,098,861 307,891 275,008
1,866,057,920 1,966,275,747 1,683,845 1,684,032
3,602,867,995 3,189,608,322 3,085,704 2,731,765
51,394,700 51,089,171 44,017 43,756
2,954,942 3,878,179 2,531 3,321
18,656,485 - 15,978 -
11,161,058 - 9,550 -

47 427,006 34,723,414 40,619 29,739
12,231,435,065 7.832,212,060 10,475,707 6,713,953
Wo17,114,570,888 W 13022062510 § 14,657,907 $ 11,152,850

See accompanying notes,
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Korea National Oll Comoration

Asg of December 31, 2009 and 2008

{Korean won and US doliars in thousands)

Korean won LS dollars Mefe2
2009 2008 2009 2008
Liakilities and equity
Current liabities:
Trade accounts payable, less present value
discount of W2,379,266 in 2009 and
nil in 2008 Hoe 17 W 12,914,186 W 18,523,568 11,080 3 15,8656
Short-term borrowingg et 12 and 16; 1,499,939,499 565,875,000 1,284,635 484,648
Othar accounts payablg Motes 18 ad 19 328,022,856 470,928,383 280,938 403,330
Withholdings 11,449,319 11,377,790 9,808 9,745
Accrued expenses 44,047,082 3,218,085 37,724 2,756
Income taxes payable 26,638 1,205 23 1
Current portion of long-term: borrowings and
ABS labiities, less present value discount
of W499,827 in 2009 and nil in 2008
fotes 13, 14, 16 and 17) 345,164,594 662,163,003 205,619 567,115
Firm commitment liabifities Mels 20 5,978,112 - 5120 -
Derivative fiabilitias Hote20 16,579,031 119,481,363 14,199 102,331
Defertad income tax fiabiities Moo 28 83,295,380 - 71,330 -
Cthers 117,940,739 92,041,373 101,011 78,833
Total current fiabilties 2,4065,357,408 1,843,809,770 2,111,474 1,664,624
Non-current liabilities:
Bonds payable Mtes 13 and 16 1,818,101,382 - 1,057,127 -
Leng-term borrowings denominated
in Korean won Hoe 13 981,017,381 1,108,221,155 840,200 950,001
Long-term horrowings denominated
in forelgn currencies Hotes 18, 16and 17) 2,704,187 864 1,678,320,639 2,316,022 1,694,356
Long-term trade accounts payable, less
present value discount of W4,946,523 in
2008 and W8,494,651 in 2008 Hoe 17 46,668,499 46,519,462 39,970 30,842
Severance and retirement benefilg Mot 18 - 10,201,118 - 8,737
Provision for restoration costs et 18 247,373,779 186,868,963 211,865 160,048
Asset-backed securitization (*ABS")
liabiilies #o=14 20,847,564 50,454,432 17,855 43,212
Derivative liabilities M= 20 12,084,285 - 10,350 -
Deferred income tax liabilities Poe 28 - 116,955,170 - 100,167
Other long-term liabiltieg Metes 7. 16and 9] 396,958,758 63,752,679 339,979 54,601
‘Total non-current liabilities 6,227,238,502 3,062,303,625 5,333,368 3,050,962
Total fiabilities 8,692,508,008 5,506,913,395 7,444,842 4,715,586
Equity:
Paid-in-capitat Mote2t 6,642416,780 5,914,814,780 5,694,944 5,065,789
Capital surplus 24,964,221 24,954,221 21,372 21,372
Accumulated other comprehensive
income Metes 2axd 23 156,467 255 382,308,278 134,008 327,508
Retained sarmings Mele 22 1,591,135,824 1,193,9581,836 1,362,741 1,022,585
Totak equity 8,421,974,080 7,516,149,115 7,213,065 6,437,264
Totat liabiities and equity W 17.114,670988 W 13,022,062,510 14,657,807 $ 11,152,850
See accompanying notes.
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Statements of income |

Korea National Ok Corporation

For tha years endad Decermnber 31, 2008 and 2008

(Korean won and US dollars in thousands}

Korean won US dollars Mote 3
2000 2008 2009 2008
Salpg Meie 52 W 1,800,061,781 W 1747479508 § 1,541,668 $ 1,498,642
Cost of salpg M2 1,162,471,836 1,066,778,253 905,608 012,784
Gross profit 37,579,845 681,701,255 546,060 583,848
Safling and adminisirative expensas Hotes 28,29 and31) 75,462,642 78,574,679 64,831 67,206
Operating income 562,117,003 603,126,576 481,429 516,552
Other income (expenses):
interest income 75,318,421 59,231,898 64,507 50,730
interest expense on borrowings and bonds {120,846,796) (32,629,953 (103,500) (27,046)
interast expense on ABS labilities (18,772,575) {36,967,282) {16,078) (31,661)
Gain (oss) on forejgn clirency transactions, net {(118,718,777) 837,437 (101,676) 717
Galn (loss) on foreign currency transkalion, net 324,101,873 (139,388,124) 277,680 (118,378
Equuity in eamnings {loss) of equity method
irvestments, net fee D (36,5682,647) 2,011,761 (31,331) 1,723
Loss on disposal of equity method investments, net {676,130) - 679) -
Gain {oss) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net {37,831} 130,359 {32) 112
Galn on disposal of intanglble assets 3,643,003 26,531,703 3,120 22,723
Reversal of allowance for doubstiul account 8,220,714 530,328 7,041 462
Gain fram labilities exemptad Mo 17} 1,364,335 3,021,375 1,168 2,588
l.oss on settlement of derivative
instruments, net 8,912,807} {591,500} {7,833 (507)
Loss on valuation of derivative
instruments, net o 28 6,106,173) (113,379,973 (5,230) 97,109)
Gain on vakation of firm commitrments, net
{Note 26) 6,106,173 113,378,973 5,230 97,106
Other bad debt expensg Netes 8and 17) (27,573,753) (130,319,139) 23,616} (111,613}
Dues cn income from ol fields (73,546,667) (14,291,232) (20167} (12,240}
Provision for restoration costs ek 8 (11,959,781) (7,996,287) (16,243} (8,848}
Impaiment koss on ofl Interestg Motes 2 and 16 (24,651,977) 5,697 ,421) (21,113} (4,880)
Donation Mo 3 {4,178,002) (536,130 (3,578} (459
Non-operafing income from overseas
oil fields, net 72,524,089 28,830,876 62,114 24,692
Prior period error corrections Hete 2 (9,742,187) - (8,344) -
Cthers, net 7,851,850 15,710,622 6,723 13,456
86,826,485 {231,6568,791) 74,363 (198,329)
Income before income taxes 648,943,488 371,557,785 555,792 318,223
Provision for Incomie taxes #te20 206,661,536 171,366,044 124,117 146,767
Net income W 422291952 W 200,192,741 § 361,675 $ 171,456
See accompanying nobes,
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Statements of appropriations of retained earnings |
[ For the years ended Decamber 31, 2009 and 2008

Korea National Off Corporation (Korean won and US dollars in thousands)

Korean won US dollars M2
2009 2008 2009 2008

Retained earnings before appropriations:
Unappropriated retained eamings
{undisposed accumiiated deficit}

carried forward frorn the prior period W - W (B0,699,755) $ - $ 69,116)
Net income 422,291,952 200,192,741 361,675 171,456
422,291,952 119,492,986 361,675 102,340

Appropriations (2009-proposed): )
tegal reserve Hoe 22 177,366,939 47,177,511 151,907 40,406
Reserve for business expansion Mete 22 177,366,939 47,177,511 151,807 40,408
Cash dividends #ee2n 67,558,074 25,137,964 57,861 21,528
. 422,291,952 119,492,986 361,875 102,340

Unappropriated retained earnings to be
carried forward to the next year w W - $ - $ -
Ses accompanying notes.
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Statements of changes in equity |
i For the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2008

Korea National Ofl Corporation (Korean won and US dollars in thousands)
Paid-in-capital Capial surplus Aﬁ%ﬂfﬁ:ﬁéﬁzﬁ E::gfﬁgg Total equity
income
As of January 1, 2008 W 4,684,912,780 W 24,954,221 W 6,399,417y W 1,016,745167 W 5,720,212,751
Dividends - - - (22,056,072) (22,956,072)
Addition to paid-in-capital 1,228,802,000 - - - 1,229,802,000
Net income for the year - - - 200,192,741 200,192,744
Foreign currency translation adjustments - - 252,915,888 -~ 252,515,888
Loss on valuation of available-for-sale
securities - - (980,890) - {880,890)
Equity adjustments arising from
equity method investments - - 901 287 - 901,257
Gain on valuation of derivative investments - - 135,871,440 - 135,871,440
As of December 31, 2008 W 5914,814,780 W 24,954,221 W 382,398,278 W 1,193,981,836 W 7,516,149,115
US doliars Mete 2 3 5,065,780 & 21,372 § 327,508 % 1,022,595 § 6,437,264
As of January 1, 2009 Y o5914,814,780 W 24,954,001 W 382,398,278 W 1,193,981,836 W 7,516,149,115
Dividends - - - (25,137,564} (25,137 ,964)
Addition to paid-in-capital 734,602,000 - - - 734,602,00C
Net income for the year - - - 422,201,952 422,291,952
Gain on valuation of available-for-sale
securities - - 1,852,482 - 1,952,482

Equity adjustments arising from

equity method investments - - (25,009,200 - (25,009,200}
Forsign currency translation adjustments - - (70.410,283) - (70,410,283}
Loss on valuation of derivative investments - - {132,464,022) - {132,464,022}

As of December 31, 2609 W 6,649416,780 W 24,954,221 W 156,467,250 W 1,591,135,824 W 8,421,974,080
US dollars Mete 2 % 5,694,944 % 21,372 § 134,008 % 1,362,741 § 7,213,065

See accompanying notes,
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Statements of cash flows |
| For the years ended Dacermber 31, 2009 and 2008

Korea Nationak il Corporation {Korean won and US dollars in thousands)

Korean won US dollarg tele 2
2009 2008 2009 2008

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income Woo422291952 W 2000192741 § 361,675 § 171,456
Adjustmenis fo reconcile net income 1o net cash
provided by (used i) operating activities:

Provision for severance and retirement benefits 1,208,316 9,702,334 1,035 8,309
Depreciation 124,817,450 91,040,456 106,901 77972
Amortization of intangible assels 334,190,395 198,058,737 286,220 170,485
Interest income (21,614,239 (24,840,353) (18,512) (21,360}
Interest expense 26,043,335 35,869,554 22,305 30,721
Loss {gain) on foreign currancy translation, net (325,365,415} 139,356,203 (278,662) 119,352
Equity In foss {eamings) of ecully method
investments, net 36,582,647 {2,011,781} 31,331 (1,723
Loss on disposal of equity method investments 676,130 - a79 -
1035 (gain) on disposal of property, plant and
equipment, net 37,831 (130,358) 32 {112)
Galn on disposal of intangible assets (3,643,003 (26,531,703 (3120) (22,723
Revarsal of allowance for doubtful accounts {8,220,714) (539,326) (7,041) {462)
Gain from liabiliies exempted {1,364,335) (3,021,375) {1,188) {2,588}
|.oss on valuation of derivative instruments, net 6,106,173 113,379,973 5,230 97,105
Gain on valuation of firm commitments, net 6,106,173 (113,379,973 5,230) {a97,105)
Provision for restaration cosls 11,969,781 7,995,287 10,243 6,848
Other bad debt expense 27,573,753 130,319,139 23616 111,613
Impaiment loss on ofl interests 24,651 977 5,697,421 21,113 4,880
Prior pariod error corrections 9,742,167 - 8,344 -
Others, net (3,525,926) 203,385 3,019} 174
Changes in operaling assets and liabilities:
Trade accounts and notes recevable (243,283,733 28,743,555 (708,362) 24 618
Short-term loans 262,668,820 223,308,847 216,392 191,255
Other accounts recaivable 27,084,424 (41,584,847} 23,197 (35,616)
Inventorias (215,973,021) (511,468,074) (184,972) (438,051)
Long-term Ioans (274,405,827 (200,060,362 (235,017} (171,343
Long-term cther accounts receivable 1,188,191 - 1,018 -
Deferred income taxes 49,660,919 56,780,330 42,532 48,639
Other assets, nat ' {23,062,200) (11,453,508 {19,752 {5,809)
Foreign currency translation adjustments {92,590,517) 252,915,888 {85,295) 216,612
Trade accounts payable (18,530,142} {13,413475) (15,870 {11,488)
Other accounts payabls (306,194,737) 241,222,600 (262,243) 206,597
Withholdings 71,528 5,985,891 61 5127
Accrued expenses ’ 40,826,998 (7,954,185) 34,968 6,812)
Income taxas payable 25,433 1,205 22 1
Current poriion of long-term borrowings (252,658,820 (223,309,847) {216,302} ©{191,255)
Long-term botrowings denominated In Korean won 86,023,050 24,675,330 73,675 21,048
|_ong-term botrowings denhominated in forelgn currencies 188,459,421 175,485,032 161,408 150,295

Sea accompanying notes.
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Statements of cash flows |

Korea National Cil Corgoration

For the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008

{Korean won and US dollars in thousands)

Korean won US doliarg Hols2
2009 2008 2009 2008
Payment of severance and retirement benefits (1,569,184) (4,703,733} (1,344 (4,029)
Operational assets for pension plan (7,192,983} (30,370,708} 6,160) (8,882)
Derivative assels (113,379,973} {1,700,881) {37,105) (1,457)
Other liablfties, net 24,547,073 27,874,131 21,109 23873
Total adjustments (651,443,136} 572,951,808 (557,933} 490,709
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activiies W (229,151,184} W 773,144,548 {166,258) 662,165
Cash flows from in\iesﬁng activities:
Decrease (increase) in short-term financiat instruments W (167,137,500, W 336,507,000 (143,146) 288,204
Increase in long-term financial instuments (2,000,000} - (1,713 -
Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale securities - 17,267,871 - 14,789
Proceeds from disposal of equity method investments 1,322,400 - 1,132 -
Increase in loans to affliates, net (53,018,297} (186,490,415) {45,408) {159,721}
Increase in short-term foans, net - (11,321,989 - (3,697}
Decrease in long-term guarantee deposits, net 923,237 270,460 791 232
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 438,629 367,106 375 314
Proceeds from disposal of intangible assels 4,154,885 35,287,048 3,558 30,223
Acquisition of avalable-for-sale securities (30,789) (5,477,343) (26) {4,691
Acquisition of equity method Investments {3,823,502,442) (1,140,294) (3,274,745) o7
Acquisition of property, plant and eguipment {(138,759,201) (140,481,509} (117,128) (120,316)
Acquisition of intangible assets {304,516,274) (1,790,708,797) (261,148) (1,533,666)
Others, net {1,782,257) {1,670,313) {1,526) (1,431)
Net cash used in investing activities {4,482,397,709) {1,747,590,276) (3,838,984) (1,496,737)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Procesds from short-term bormowings 1,508,336,270 607,161,497 1,291,826 520,008
Repayment of short-term bonowings {502,066,080) - {429,998} -
Procesds from issuance of bonds payable 1,966,148,449 - 1,683,823 -
Proceeds from addition to paid-in-capital 734,602,000 1,229,902,000 629,156 1,053,359
Repayment of curent portion of long-tarm
homowings and ABS liabifities (409,504,183 (90,336,927) (350,723 {77,370)
Proceads from long-term bonowings 816,350,415 361,314,861 659,169 309,451
Repayment of long-term borowings (115,678,038) (21,053,631} {99,073) (18,032)
Payment of dividends tc owner (25,137,964) (22,956,072) {21,530) (19,661)
Net cash provided by in finanging activiies 3,973,050,889 2,084,031,728 3,402,750 1,767,756
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (738,498,024) 1,089,586,001 {832,492) 933,184
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
of the period M= 33 1,696,119,237 606,633,236 1,452,854 519,470
Cash and cash equivalents at the end
of the period Mete 33 W 957,621,213 W 1,696,119,237 820,162 1,452,654
See accompanying notes.
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Notes o financial statements)

§ December 31, 2009 and 2008

Corporate information

Korea Nationai Ol Corporation (the "Company”) was incorporated on March 3, 1979 to engage in the deveiopment of oil fields,
distribution of crude oil, maintenance of petroleum reserve stock and improvement of the petroleum distribution structure under the
Korea National Qil Corporation Act.

The Company's head office is located in Anyang, Gyeonggi-do in Korea. The Company also has 9 pefroleumn stockpile offices, 1
domestic gas field management office, 13 overseas offices in Vietnam and other countries and 22 overseas affilated entities in the LS
and cther countries,

As of December 31, 2009 and 2008, tha Company is wholly owned by the Korean government,

Summary of significant accounting policies

Basis of financial statement preparation

The Gormpany maintains its official accounting records in Korsan won and prepares statutory financial statements in the Korean
languags in conformity with accourting principles for government-controlled corporations, as issued by the Ministry of Strategy and
Finance (*MSF"). The accounting standards for government-controlled corporations reguires the accounting principles generally
accepted in the Republic of iKorea to be applied where there is no specific guidance under accounting standards for government-
controlied corporations. Certain accounting principles applied by the Company that conform with financial accounting standards and
accounting principles in the Republic of Korea may not conform with generally accepted accounting principles in other countries.
Accordingly, these financial stafements are intended for use by those who are informed about Korean accounting principles and
practices. In the event of any differances in interpreting the financisd statements or the independent auditors’ report thereon, the Kerean
version, which is used for regulatory reporting purposss, shall prevai. The accompanying financial statements have been condensed,
restructured and translated into English (with certain expanded descriptions} from the Korean language financial statements.

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with accounting standards for government-controfled
corporations and Statements of Korea Accounting Standards ("SKAS") 1 to 23, The summary of significant accounting policies used
for the preparation of the financial statements ars as follows:

Financial staternents translation

The accompanying financial staternents are expressed in Korean won and, solely for the convenience of the readers, have been
Hranshated into United States dollars at the rate of WH,167.80 to US$1, the year end exchange rate on December 31, 2009. Such
translation should not be construed as a representation that the Korean won amounts can actually be converted into United States
dollars at the exchange rate used for the purposes of such transiation.

Adoption of revised SKAS and Korean Financial Accounting Standards (“KFAS") Interpretation

The Company has adopted the revised SKAS 5 Amendmerits — Froperty, Plant and Fuipment and the revised KFAS Interpretation
53-70 Amendments — Accourting for Derivatives for the current year. The adoption of these revised standards did not have material
effect on the Company’s financial statements.
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Notes to financial statements|

56

Revenue recognition

Revenuga from the sale of petroleumn Is recognized when significant risks and rewards of ownership of the petroleum have been
transferred to the buyer, usually upon delivery thereof. Revenue from sales activities other than pefroleum is recognized when the
Company's earnings process has been substantially completed, the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable
that the ecanomic benefits assoclated with the transaction will fiow to the Company.

Cash equivalents

Highly quid deposits and marketable securities with original maturities of three menths or less, and which have no significant risk of
loss in value by interest rate fluctuations, are considered as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Fnancial instruments, stch as time deposits and restricted bank deposits, which are traded by financial instifutions and are held for
short-term cash management purposes or which will mature within one year, are accounted for as short-term financial instruments,
Financial instruments other than cash equivalents and short-term financial instruments are recordad as long-term financial instruments,

Allowance for doubtful accounts

The Cormpany provides an allowance for doubtful accounts in consideration of the estimated losses that may arise from non-collection
of its raceivables. The estimate of losses, i any, is based an a review of the aging and curent status of the outstanding receivablas.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, with cost being determined using the moving-average method.
A perpetual inventory systern is used to record inventories, in which inventories are adjusted to physical inventory counts that are
performed at the end of the vear.

When a decling in the value of inventory indicates that s cost exceeds net realizable value or replacement costs, a valuation loss will be
recognized to write the inventory down to its net realizable valus, except for oll steckplle inventory, which is racorded at acquisition cost
regardless of whether acquisition cost is lower than net realizable value in accordance with the Special Accounting Provisions of MSK

Investments in securities

Investments in securities within the scope of SKAS 8 investiments in Securities are classified as elther trading, heid-to-mafurity
or avallable-for-sale securities, as appropriate, and are initially measured at cost, including incidental expenses, with cost being
determined using the moving-average method. The Company determines the classification of its investments after initial recognition
and, where allowed and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at each financial year end.

Securities that are acquired and held principally for the purpese of selling them in the near term are classified as trading securities.
Debt securities which carry fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity if the Company has
the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity. Securities that are not classified as either trading or held-to-maturity are classified
as available-for-sale securities.

After initial measurement, available-for-sale securities are measured at fair value with unrealized gains or losses being recognized
directly in equity as other comprehensive income, Likewiss, trading secuirities are also measured at fair value after initlal measurement,
but with unrealized gains or losses reported as part of net income. Held-to-matuwrity securities are measured at amortized cost after
initiad measurement. The cost is computed as the amount initially recognized minus principal repayments, plus or minus the cumulative
amortization using the effective interast rate method of any difference batween the initially recognized amount and the maturity amount,

The fair value of frading and available-for-sale securities that are traded actively in the open market (marketable securities) is measured
at the closing price of these securities at the statement of financial position date. Non-markefable eguity securities are measured at
cost subsequent to initial measurement if their fair vafues cannot be reliably estimated. Non-marketable debt securities are camled at a
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value using the present value of future cash flows discounted using an appropriate interest rate which reflects the issuer's credit rating
announced by a public independent credit rating agency. if the application of such measurement method is not feasible, estimates
of fair values may be made using a reasonable valuation model or quoted market prices of simiiar debt securities issued by entities
conducting business in similar indusiries.

Trading securities are classified as current assets. Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are classified as long-term
irvestmants, except that securities maturing within one year or that are certain to be disposed of within one or that ars certain to be
disposed of within one year from the statement of financial position date are classified as short-term investments,

The Company recognizes an impairment loss on its investments in securities if there is objectivé evidence that the securities are
impaired. The impairment loss Is charged to the statement of income.

Equity method investments
Investments in entities over which the Company has control or significant infiuence are accounted for using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, the Company's initial investment in an investes is recorded at acquisition cost. Subsequently,
the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to reflect the Company’s share of income or loss of the investee in the staterment of
income and share of changes in equity that have besn recognized directly in the equity of the investee in the refated equity account of
the Cornpany on the statement of financial position, If the Company’s share of losses of the investee equals or exceeds its interest in
the investee, it suspends recognizing its share of further losses. However, if the Company has other long-term interests in the investee,
it continues recognizing its share of further losses to the extent of the carrying amaunt of stich long-term interests.

At the date of acquisition, the excess of the cost of the Investment over the Company's share of the net fair value of the investee's
identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill which is amortized over its useful life of within 20 years using the straight-
line method. Conversely, negative goodwill represents the excess of the Company's share in the net fair value of the investea's
ideniifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, Negative goodwill is recorded to the extent of the fair value of acquired
non-manetary assets and recognized as incame using the straight-ine method over the remaining weighted-average useful life of
those acquired non-maonetary assets. The amaotnt of negative goodwill in excess of the fair value of acguired non-monetary assets Is
racognized as income immediately. ’

The Company's shere in the investee’s unrealized profits and losses resulting from transactions batween the Company and its investee
is eliminated to the extent of the interest in the investee.

Investments in entities engaging in oil field activities

For investment in an entdy engaging in exploring, developing and producing oil fields, which the Company has substantial contral over
the investee and the significant risks and sewards from the opsarations of the investes, the Company accounts for its proportionate share
of assets, liabiliies, profits and expenses of the investes directly within the corresponding line items on its financial statements based
on percantage ownership. Otherwise, the Company accounts for is inferest either as an equity method investment or available-for-sale
investmsnt, as appropriate.

In translating the financial staterments of foreign investees into Korean won, assets and liabiities are franslated at the exchange rate on the
statement of financial position date and incoms and expenses are transiated at the weighted-average exchange rate for the period. All
restiting exchange differences ate recognized as foreign currency translation adjustments in other comprehensive income within equity.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stafed at cost less accumulated depreciation. Maintenance and repairs are expensed in the year in
which they are incurred, Expenditures which enhance the value or extend the useful fife of the related assats are caplialized.

Propsrty, plant and equipment used far oil production wells are depreciated using the unit-of-production method, Depreciation of
other proparty, plant and equipment is pravided using the declining-balance method, except for buildings and structures for which the
stralght-ine mathod is used, over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Years
Buildings 20,40
Structures 20,40
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Furniture and fixtures 5
Gil prospecting vessels 12

When thers is a legal or contractual obligation for dismantling and removing facilities and restoring sites on which they are focated
to their original condition at the end of the useful lives of the facllities, the present value of the estimated future restoration costs are
capitalized at the acquisition date as additions to the cost of faclities and are accounted for a8 a provision. The Company stbsaeguently
depreciates the restoration costs usihg the unit-of-production method and the difference betwesn astimated restoration costs and
their present value is charged to current operations by applying the effective-interest-rate method over the useful lives of the facilitiss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets of the Company consist of oil wells, development costs and other intangible assets, which are stated at cost less
accumulated amortization and impaimment losses.

{) Gil exploratory, development and production wells

The Company engages in the development of overseas natural resources either by entering into contracts for sharing the extracted
natural rescurces or by acquiring inferests in the related projects. The acquisition cost of the interests in ol fislds is included in oil
interests in exploration, development or production in intangible assets.

(1) Ol exploratory wells consist of geomorphic and geophysical investigation costs, and excavation costs on promising structures for
exploratory driling. When proved successful, the cost is reclassified to oll development wells,

(2) Qi development wells consist of costs for of field valuation, censtruction of production faciiity and offshore rig operation by using
informaticn obtained through exploration step. The cost is reclassified to oll production wells upon the commercial prodiuction of
petroleum.

(3) il production wells consist of operation costs for improving productivity, oil reservair management for prediction of off output and
prodiction optimization, and increasing the return rate of crude oil.

The costs of production wells are amortized using the unit-of-production method in accordance with accounting principles for
government-controlled corperations established by the Ministry of Strategy and Finance. For exploratory wells proven to be
unsuccessiul upon evalugtion, the investments in such wells are immediately charged to current operations and the Company is
exempt from its obiigation to repay the borrowings associated with the unsuccassfuf exploratory wels in accordance with the Special
Accounts for Energy and Resources ("SAER") and a gain from [abifties exempted is recognized. No gains from fabilities exempted
were recognized for unsuccessful wells during the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008.

@i Other intangible assets

Development costs in infangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method. Amortization of the asset begins when
developrment is completed and the asset is available for use, over the estimated useful lives of 5 years. The amortization expense is
recognized as part of manufacturing costs or sefling and administrative expenses.

Other intangible assets other than oil wells and development costs are amortized using the straight-line method, except for software
for which the declining-balance method is used, over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
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Years
Patents 5
Cther intangible asssts 5,20

impairment of assets

When the recoverable amount of an asset Is less than s carrying amount due to obsclescence, physical damage or unexpected
decline in the market value of the assat, the decline In value, if material, is deducted from the carrying amount and recognized as an
asset impairment foss in the current year, The Company recognized an impairment loss on off interests amounting to W24,651,977
thousand and W6,687,421 thousand for the years ended Decernber 31, 2000 and 2008, respectively,

Subseauently, if the recoverable amount of the asset exceads its canying amount which has been impaired, the canying amount is
increased to the lower of the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of amortization or depreciation had no impairment
loss been recogrized for the assst in prior periads, or its recoverable amount.

Government subsidy

Government subsidy, which is used for the acquiisition of certain assets, is accounted for as a deduction from the acquisition cost
of the acquired assets. Such subsidy amount is offset against the depreciation or amortization of the acquired assets during such
assets’ usseful Hle, Government subsidy which is required to be repaid is recorded as a liabiity in the statement of financial position.
Govarnment subsidy with no repayment obligation, which is used to purchase a designated asset or to develop a certain technology,
is presented as a dsduciion of the related asset and is amortized against depreciation or amoriization expense of the related asset,
Government stbsidy, contributed to compensate for specific expanses is, offset against the related expenses as incurred,

Employee retirement benefits

In accordancs with the Employee Ratirement Benefit Security Act ("ERBSA") and the Company’s employes bensfits policy, the Company
allowed its employees to make a trensiiion o a defined bensfit pension plan (‘DB Plan”) introduced from 2006 or and a defined contribution
pension plan (DG plar) introduced from 2008, together with the traditional severance and retirement benefits plan.

Prior to the introduction of DB Plan and DG plan, the Company was ohiiged 1o pay all employess a sevarance payment which required
no external funding under the tracitional severance and retirement bensfits plan. For employees who chose the DB plan, the accumulated
severance and retiremeant benafits under the previous severance and retirement benefits plan wers transferred to the DB plan at the
effective date of the DB plan at the option of its employees.

Under the 0B Plan, the provision for retiremant benefits is determined based on the final salary equal in value at retirement to at least one
month's final salary for every year of service by an employse. The DB plan is funded by the Company and the plan’s assets are managed
hy the plan’s administrator. The liabilty for DB plan is presented net of the plan's assets at the end of the reporting petiod.

Under the DG Plan, the Company pays a fixed monthly contribution of at lsast 1/12™ of an employes’s annual salary for sach year of senvice
10 a separately administered fund. Contributions to the DG Plan are recognized as an expense in the statement of income as incurred.

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation flegal or constructive) as a result of a past evant, it is probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will ke required to settle the obligation and a refiable estimate can be rade
of the amount of the obligation. The provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognized. If the
effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at present value.

A contingent liability is disclosed, but not recognized when it is not probable that an outfiow of resources embodying economic
benefis will be required to setile the obligation or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.
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Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabfities for the current and pricr pariods are measured at the amount axpected 1o be recovered from
o paid o the tax authorities. Deferred income axes are provided using the liability method for the tax effect of temporary differences
between the tax bases of assats and liabilities and their reported amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax assets and
fisbilites are measured using the enacted tax rates and laws that will be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse, and are
classified as current or non-current, respactively, based on the classification of the related asset or liability in the statement of financial
pesiton, In addition, cument tax and deferred tex are charged or credited directly to equity if the tax relates to iterns that are credited or
charged directly to equity.

Valuation of receivables or payables at present value

Receivables or payables arising from long-term installment transactions are stated at present value, The difference betwesn the
carrying amount and present value of the recelvables or payables is amortized using the effective-interest-rate method and credited or
charged 1o the statement of income over the installment period.

When credit terms (e.g., principal, Interest rate, payment period) of receivables or payables between debtors or creditors experiencing
financial difficulties (e.g., court receivership, debt restructuring, financlal workout) are unfaverably changed from the perspective of the
Company, such receivables or payables are stated at present valus caleulated by discounting the future cash flows in accordance with
the modified terms of the restructured receivables or payables by using the effective-interest-rate method from the origination date and
the difference between the carrying amount and present valug of stich recelvables or payables is charged or credited to the statement
of incoma.

Foreign currency transiation
Transactions invelving foreign currencies are recorded at the exchange rates prevalling at the time the transactions are made.

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currenciss are translated into Korean won at the appropriate exchangs rates on
the statement of financial position date. The resulting unrealized foraign currency translation gains or osses are credited or charged
to current operations. Non-monelary §ems that are re-measured in tarmns of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates as at the dates of the inftial fransactions. However, monetary liabilities denominated in foreign currencies in
connection with the Company's loan to an investee engaging in devetoping an oil fisld, whose repayment obligation is contingent
upen the success of the project, is translated into Korean won using the exchange rafe on the date of the initial transaction until the
development is proven to be sticcessful.

Transtation of foreign operations financial statements

Financial staternents of foreign entiies and foreign equity method investees {collectively “forelgn operations”) are maintained in the
currencies of the countries in which they conduct thelr operations. In translating the foreign operations financiat statements into Kerean
won, assets and liabilities are transiated at the year-end exchange rate at the date of the statement of financial position and income
and expenses are translated at the weighted-average exchange rate during the year. All resulting exchange differences are recognized
as foreign currency translation adjustments in other comprehensive income within equity.

On disposal, close down or dissolution of a foreign operation, the cumulative amount of the exchange differences recognized other
comprehensive income relating to that particular operation is reclassified from: equity to the statement of income, As of December
31, 2009 and 2008, gain from foreign currency translation adiusiments recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income
amotunted to ¥W174,687,201 thousand and 'W2465,087,484 thousand, respectively.

Derivative financial instruments and firn commitments

Derivative financial instruments are presentad as assets or liabilities vaiued principally at the fair valus of the rights or obligations
associated with the derivative contracts. The unrealized gain or foss from a derivative transaction with the purpose of hedging the
sxpostie to changes in the fair value of a recognized asset or liability or unrecognized fism commitment is recognized in net income.
For a derivative instrument with the purpose of hedging the exposure to the variability of cash flows of a recognized assst o liability
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or a forecasted transaction, the hedge-effective portion of the derivative instrument’s gain or loss is deferred as other comprehenaive
income in equity. The ineffective partion of the gain or loss is charged or credited o net income. Derivative instruments that do not
mest the critetia for hedge accounting, or contracts for which the Company has not elected hedge accounting are measured at fair
value with unrealized gains or losses reported in net income.

Significant judgments and accounting estimates

The preparation of financial statemenits in accordance with Korean GAAP requires management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and fiabilifies and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilties af the date of
the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues and expsnses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ
from those estimates.

3. The impact of adoption of Korea International Financial Reporting Standards (“K-IFRS")

The Company's implementation plan and status for K-IFRS

The Company is scheduled to apply K-IFRS for the first time in the financial period beginning January 1, 2011, The Company's primary
activities in connection with its K-IFRS implernentation include establishment of a task force team (“TFT"} 1o oversee and manage
the implementation process of K-FRS, assessment of its prefiminary impact of K-FRS and development of accounting infermation
system, Additionally, the Campany has planned to provide trainings its employees to develop K-IFRS-rained resources within the
Company and the plan and status of K-IFRS implemsntation are periodically reported to management.

The specifica of the Company’s plan and status for the implementation of K-IFRS are as follows:

Major activities Implementation plan Status

Analysis of effects of accounting differences  Appeintment of an external achvisor and Gommenced from 2009 and is scheduled io
analysis of the differences between KAFRS  compiete in 2010
and Korean GAAP

Training programs for the employees Basic training of K-IFRS and specific training  Schedided in 2010
on the analysis of the impact of individual
standards

Establishment of accounting policies Documentation and astablishment of Scheduled in 2010
accounting palicies considering elective
accounting treatments

Development of accounting information Development of accounting information Scheduled in 2010
systam syatermn capable of generating K-IFRS finangial
information
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Major accounting differences between K-IFRS and Korean GAAP

The table below desaribes the major accounting policy changes that are expected to give rise to a significant impact on the Company's
financial staternents for its first K-IFRS reporting period in 2011, The areas mentioned abaove are not exhaustive, and additional areas
may be identified in the future as a result of further assessment.

Subject

Company’s current accounting policy

K-IFRG

Classification of oil stockpile

Classifled as inventory

Classified as non-curent asset

Useful lfe and depreciation method of property, Determination of useful life according to tax law Datermination of useful fife based on the

plant and equipment and accounting practice in Korea based on the expected tarm of usage and the expected pat-
declining balance method tern of consumption of the assets baing used
Deemed cost for land Cost method Falr value as of the date of fransition (as of

January 1, 2010

Gonsolidated financial statements and separate Individual non-consolidated financial state-

financial statements

ments are primary and no reguirement for
preparation of separals financlal statements

Consciidated financial statements are primary,
and the preparation of separate financial state-
ments requirss complianice with the standard

Accumulating compensated absences foran-  No specific guidance

nuct leave

Hecognized when the employees rendsr ser-
vicas which increase their entitlement to future
annuat leave

Defined benefit obligation

The provision for severance and retirement
bensafils is determined based on the amount
that would be payable assuming all employees
were to terminate their employment as of the
reporting date

The defined benefit obligation is recognized as
ihe present value of the expected retirement
benefit which is calculated using actuatial as-
sumptions including discount rate according to
the Projected Unit Credit Methed

Goodwill Amortized using the stralght-ine method over  No amorfization and annual impairment test is
the estimated useful life within 20 years reguired
Membership Presented as a non-cunent asset Presented as an intangible asset with an indafi-

nite usedul fife

Measurement of loans and receivables

Initially and subseguently measured at cost

Racognized at fair value on the date of initial
recognition and subsequently measurad using
amartized cost method

Business combination

Purchase accounting method except podling
of intarest method for business combination
under cormmon contral

Purchase accounting method (exemption of
the retrospective application for business com-
bination before first-time adoption is allowed)

Functional cumency

N/A

US dollar is identified as a functional currency
and Karean won is identified as a presentation
currency
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4. Inveniories

December 31, 2008 and 2008

[nventories as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2008 2008
Goods ki 55,000,955 W -
Finished goods 12,533,007 9,226,160
Raw matetials 6,052,867 11,520,753
Off stockpile 2,646,768,862 2,485,069,961
Supplies 8,263,827 8,851,260
W 2,728,620,518 w 2.512,868,134
5. Other current assets
Other current assets as of December 31, 2000 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):
2008 2008
Accred income Y 3,687,008 W 5,478,170
Advance payments 34,198,152 28,567,258
Prepaid expenses 4,053,430 4,340,485
Other 59,123,232 38,320,910
W 101,059,822 W 76,708,823

6. Available-for-sale securities

Available-for-sale equity securities as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 consist of the foliowing (Korean won in thousands):

2009 Impaimment loss
OW”;; ship Acquisiion cost  Fair value Book value Unrgslirifed Priorto 2009 2009
Non-rmarketable securities:

Micronic Korea Co., Lid.t iB70 W 775000 W — W 378,853 W - W 396,147 W -

Dachan Oil Pipeline Corportion (3 3.62 8,298,000 11,065,383 11,065,383 2,767,383 - -
Petronado SA. (0 5.64 14,344,292 - 14,344,292 - - -

Yemen LNG Company Lid, 1.06 21,190,604 - 21,190,504 - - -

W 44,607,706 W 11,065,383 W 46,079,032 W 2,767,383 W 396147 W -
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2008 impaiment loss
OW”;: ship Acquisition cost  Fair value Book value Unﬁgfed Priorto 2009 2008
Non-mariketable securities:
Micranic Korea Go., L1d, () 16.70 W 775,000 W - W 378,853 W - W 308,147 W -
Daehan Oil Pipeline Corportion 2 3.69 8,298,000 9,139,417 9,139,417 841,417 - -
Petronado S.A. (Y 5.64 14,320,482 - 14,320,482 - - -
Yamen LNG Company Lid, 9 1.06 21,183,525 - 21,183,525 - - -

WoA4577,007 W G130417 W 45022277 W 841,417 W 305147 W

) These equity investments are maasured at cost less any impairment loss since their fair value cannot be reliably deterrmined.

% The fakr value of this equity investment was determined by reference to the amount pravided by NICE Pricing Setvices Inc.,
which Ia an independent appraiser in Korea.

Equity method investments

invastments in equity securities accounted for using the equity method as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean

won in thousands):

2008
OWﬂ;:I" ship Acquisition cost Pro:sc;r;ifsgtueenet Book value
KNOG Samsung Lantian Off Development Co., Lid. 44 id 5,858,010 W 5,458,730 W 5,458,739
Qiltanking KNOGC Yeosu 29 2,335,950 776,793 776,793
Dolphin Property Limited 75 58,026 929,852 58,026
Kernhem B, 37 8,978,069 8,978,069
ADA OL LLPU) 13 21,420,610 5,011,222 21,420810
KNOGC Bazian Limited 38 35 55,474 35
KNOCG Inam Limited 40 37 (8,869 37
KNOC Kamgchatka Petroleum Limited 55 1,120 {1,208,409) 1,120
Fosco BV 33 7,315 69,511) 7315
KC Karpavsky BV, 35 8,534 (578,348} 8,534
KNOG Nigerian West Oit Company Limited 75 57,284 (18,689,130} 57,284
KNGG Nigerian East O Company Limited 75 57,284 (20,756,645} 57,284
KNOG Aral Lid. 51 49 121,087 49
Korea Kamehatka Co., Lid. 50 6,736,364 4,738,284 6,736,364
KC Kazakh B.V. 35 232,674 227,739 232,674
KNOG Ferghana Lid. 50 777 605 777
Harvast Energy Trust (2 100 2,676,978,802 2,283,582,888 2,676,978,802
Ofshore Infemational Group Ing. © 50 821,223,644 185,172,605 754,368,877
KNOGC Kaz BM.04 100 419,399,817 421,642,736 418,390,817

W 3,963,354,401 W 2867488286 W 3,894,538,008

¢ As ADA OIL LLP is an affifiate of Kernhem B.V,, equity method for ADA OIL LLP was applied considering the indirect ownership

interest held by Kernhem B,
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December 31, 2002 and 2008

2 The Company wholly acquired ownership interest of Harvest Energy Trust ("Harvest') in Canada on December 23, 2009 and
applied December 31, 2008 as the deemed acquisition date which is nearest o the staterent of financial position date for
recording the investment, Harvest operates the of divisions of upstraam and downstream in Canada, The divisions of upstream
are located in Alberta, British Colombia and Saskatchewan, Canada and a division of downstream is located in Newfourdland in
Canada,

¥  |n February 2009, the Company jointly acouired Offshore International Group Inc. (“0IG”) for US$900 millior: (KNOG's share:
US$450 million) with Ecopetrol S.A. which is a Colombian government-owned company. The Company and Ecopstro 8.A,
individually have a 50% of ownership inferest in OIG. OIG mainly owns Petro-Tech Peruana S.A. which is located in Peru and
has one oll producing well and ten exploratory welis.

In accordance with the purchase contract for OlG's ownership interest, if the international average ol price per barrel for the
following 2 years since the contract date exceeds if US$E0 but less than US$70, the Company and Ecopetrol S.A should
individually pey US$ 100milllon for the combined amount of US$ 200milion. If the inlernational average ofl price per barrel for
the following 2 years ginca the contract date exceeds US$70, the Company and Ecopetral 5.A. should individually pay US$
150millicn, for the combined amaourt of US$300 milion.

As the Company believes that the international average oit price per barral for the following 2 years will range between US$E0D
and US$70, the Company accounted for the additional US$100 million (aquivelent to W1 25,644 milion) as an acquisition cost
and other long-term fiabilites as of December 31, 2008,

4 On Dacember 28, 2009, the Company acquired the 85% of ownership interest of Sumbe JSC ("Sumbe”) in Kazakhstan through
KNCC Kaz B.V, and applied December 31, 2009 as the desmed acauisition date for recording the investment. Sumbe has one
ol exploration well and one development well in Kazakhstan.

2008
Own{}e{]rship Acqulsition cost Progsosf’;i?sggtueenet Book value
KNOC Samsung Lantian Ol Deveiopment Co., Lid. 44 W 5,858,010 W 5,783,804 W 5,783,804
Qiltanking KNOG Yeosu 29 1,004,750 1,094,750 1,084,750
Dolphin Property Limited 75 58,026 58,026 58,026
Kermhem BV, 30 6,491 6,491 6,491
KNOGC Bazian Limited 28 35 35 35
KNOG Inam Limited 40 37 37 37
KNOG Karnchatka Petroleum Limited 55 1,120 1,120 1,120
Fosco BM 33 7,315 7315 7315
KG Karpovsky B.V. 35 8,534 8,634 8,534
KINCC Nigerian West Oil Company Limited 75 57,284 57,284 57,284
KNOC Nigerian East Cll Company Uimited 75 57,284 57,284 57,284
KNOG Aral Lid. 51 49 49 48
Korea Kamchatka Go., Lid. 50 6,736,364 6,736,364 6,736,364
KC Kazakh BV, 35 232,674 232,674 232,674
Offshore Intermnational Group Inc. 30 1,100,000 1,840,893 1,840,893

W 15217973 W 15884860 W 15,884,660
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The details of changes In canying amount of equity method investments for the years ended Dacember 31, 2008 and 2008 are as

ollows (Korean won in thousands):

2009
oo (MR Embeskos)  EMY ot o0

KNOC Samsung Lantian O Developrment
Co., Ltd. 5783803 W - 92,100 W @17,164) W 5,458,739
Offtanking KNOC Yeosu 1,084,750 1,241,200 (1,559,157) - 776,793
Dolphin Proparty Limited 58,026 - - - 58,026
Kemhem BM 6,491 8,871,678 - - 8,978,089
ADAQILLLP - 21,420,610 - - 21,420,610
KNOC Bezian Limited 35 - - - 35
KNOG nam Limited a7 - - - 37
KNOC Kamchatia Petrcleum Limfted 1,120 - - - 1,120
Fosco BV, 7,315 - 7318
KG Karpovsky BV, 8,634 - - - 8,634
KNOG Nigerian West Ol Cormpany Limited 57,284 - - - 57,284
KNOG Nigarian East Off Gompany Limited 57,284 - - - 57,284
KNCC Aral Ltd. 49 - - - 49
Korea Kamchatka Co., Lid. 6,736,364 - - - 8,736,364
KC Kazakh BV, 232874 - - - 232,674
Korea Offshore Logistics Co., Lid. 1,840,804 (1,998,530) 157,636 - -
KNOG Ferghana Ltd. - iy - - 77T
Harvest Energy Trust - 2,676,078,802 - - 2,676,978,802
Offshare International Group inc. - 821,223,644 (35,273,226) (31,583,74%) 754,366,677
KNOC Kaz B.M - 419,399,817 - - 419,389,817
15,884,660 W 3.047,237,808 W (36,582,647) W (32,000,805 W 3,804,539,006
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December 31, 2008 and 2008

2008

Jan. 1, 2008 ?ﬁg;:sma!z]; Eat;??\?:sEzS) adjE;lrjr;annts Dec. 31, 2008

K‘ég?égf“s“”g Lantan Of Development v, » 701471 w 145444 W 1,651,185 % 1285703 W 5783503
Oiltanking KNQGC Yeosu - 1,094,750 - - 1,004,780
Dolphin Property Limited 58,026 - - - 58,026
Kernhem B.V, 5,491 - - - 6,491
KNOC Bazian Limited . 35 - - - 35
KNOC Inam Limited 37 - - - 37
KNOC Kamgchatka Petrolsum Limited 1,120 - - - 1,120
Fasco BV, 7,315 - - - 7315
KGC Kampovsky BV, 8,534 - - - 8,534
KNOC Nigerian West Oll Company Limited 57,284 - - - 57,284
KNOC Nigerian East Oif Company Limited 57,284 - - - 57,284
KNOG Aral Lid, 49 - - - 49
Korea IKamehatka Co., Ltd. 6,736,364 - - — 6,736,364
KG Kazakh BM 232,674 - - - 232,674
Korea Offshore Logistics Co., Lid. 1,691,790 (99,200) 360,596 (11,592 1,840,894
W 114568474 W 1,140,204 W 2,011,781 W 1274111 W 15,884,660

The changes in carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2009 is as follows {(Korsan won in thousandsy.

2008
Jan. 1, 2008 Additions Amortization Dec. 31, 2008
Harvest Energy Trust W ~ W 393,385914 W - W 393,385,914
Cifshore International Group Inc. = 618,459,799 {49,265,627) 569,194,172
Kemhem BV, - 7,816,885 - 7,816,885
ADAOILLLF - 16,409,388 - 16,409,388
W — % 1,036,071,996 W (49,205,627) W 986,806,363

2009 anbusl report
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E

The summary of financlal posttion of the investees as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 and their results of operations for the years
ended December 31, 2008 and 2008 are presented as follows {Korean won in thousands}:

2008
Totassets  Total fabllties Sales Ne’fﬂgggme
KNOC Samsung Lantian Off Development Co., Lid. W 26,043,812 W 13,637,688 W 4551607 W 209,317
Oiltlanking KNOG Yeosu 2,967 456 288,859 - (5,184,129}
Dolphin Property Limited 9,476,734 8,236,931 - 1,257,146
Kemhem B.M 132,799,608 128,632,957 - (80,873
ADAOILLLP 138,024,134 98,934,355 - 11,531
KNOG Bazian Limited 94,282,373 94,136,388 - 158,461
KNOG Inam Limited 69,006,338 69,028,512 - 963
KNOGC Kamchatka Petroleum Limited 93,378,539 95,575,847 - 834
Fosco BV, 39,081,617 40,161,363 - 20,095
KC Karpovsky BM. 55,442,764 57,380,900 - -
KNOC Nigerian West Ol Company Limited 180,041,059 184,959,809 - -
KNOG Nigerian East Cil Company Limited 263,030,966 290,706,359 - -
KNOG Aral Lid. 21,851,105 21,863,680 - 257,553
Karea Kamchatka Co.,, Ltd, 207,355,148 287,878,579 - 916
KGC Kazakh B.V. 119,407,847 118,757,165 - 2,914
KNOC Ferghana Lid, 5,121,589 5,120,349 - 46
KC Kaz BV.M 421,668,026 26,290 - -
Offshore International Group inc. % 496,125,348 125,780,338 239,513,220 27,984,802
Harvest Energy Trust & 4,801,004,624 2,517,411,736 - -

1 Operating results are not presented as the desmed acquisition date was December 31, 2009,
2 Sales and net income are presersed for the peried after March 31, 2009, the deemed acquisition date.

As audited financial statements ware not available at the date of the Cempany's audited financial statements, the Company performedd
certain procedures Including obtaining unaudited financial statements of the investess singed by the investee's management to
assess the reliability of such unaudited financial staternents.
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December 31, 2003 and 2008

2008

Total assets Total liabiiites Sales Net(]i(r;;;me
KNOGC Samsung Lantian Cil Development Co., Lid, W 24524677 W 11,379,669 W 119067685 W 65350332
Oittanking KNCC Yeosu 3,648,667 63,942 - {192,275
Dofphin Property Limited 9,676,413 8,440,340 - 998,988
Kernhem B\ 67,422,768 67,438,436 - 234
KNOG Bazian Limited 80,991,951 60,934,838 - 30,016
KNOG Inam Limited | 74,420,702 74,343,400 - 35,307
KNOC Kamchatia Petroletirn Limited 92,083,830 94,002,380 - 343
Fosco BV, 35,155,614 35,125,761 - 1,739
KG Kampovsky B.V. 30,238,525 41,068,636 - -
KNOG Nigstian West O Company Limited 172,121,750 189,130,158 - (8,579)
KNOC Nigerian East Ol Cormpany Limited 283,300,708 302,210,830 - 3,894
KNQC Aral Ltd. 16,826,720 16,825,341 - 1,074
Korea Kamchatka Co., Ltd. 316,673,295 302,776,358 - 5,161
KC Kazakh B.Y, 13,103,151 12,108,468 - -
Korea Offshare Logistics Co., Lid. 11,724,087 5,687,776 10,031,474 1,201,988

8. Related party disclosures

The major refated parties of the Company and nature of their relationship with the Company are as follows:

Relationship Company name

Affiiates KNCC Samsung Lantian Ofl Development Co., Lid. (fKSLOC")
Qiltanking KNCC Yeosu ["OKYG"), Dolphin Propsrty Limited,
Kernhem BV, KNOC Bazian Limited, KNOC Inam Limited,
KNOG Kamghatka Petrolsum Limited, Fosco BV, KC Karpovsky B\,
KNOC Nigerian West Oil Company Limited, KNCC Nigerian East Oit Company Limited,
KINOG Aral Lid., Korea Kamchatka Co, Limited, KC Kazakh BV,
KNQGC Ferghana Ltd., Harvest Energy Trust, Offshore Internationa Group inc.,
KNOC Kaz BV,
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The cutstanding balances with related parties as of Dacernber 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

Total vakiation aliowance

W (129,205,784)

Account 2008 2008

KNOC Samsung Lantian Of Development Co., Ltd.  Loans to affifates w 3,978,603 W 4,284,560
Dolphin Property Limited Loans to aftlfates 4,696,973 4,696,973
Kernhem BV, Loans to affiliates 47,470,362 34,296,277
KNOG Bazian Limited Loans to afflliates 27,254,296 21,398,281
KNOG Inam Limited Loans to affliates 22,984,985 22,984 985
Valuation aflowance (12,256,693 (12,256,693}

KNOC Kamahatka Petroleum Limited Loans to affliates 46,172,355 41,264,900
Valuation alicwance {14,026,117} -

Fosco BV toans to affifiates 20,649,180 17,989,239
Vajuaticn allowance (9,103,518 -

KG Karpovsky BV, { oans to affiates 15,691,820 12,935,427
KNOG Nigerian West Of Company Limited Loans to affiliates 50,523,364 46,844,903
Valuation allowance (7,355,501} (7,355,601)

KNOG Nigerian East O#f Company Limited l.oans to affilates 56,133,002 52,450,790
Valuation allowance {6,845,150) (6,845,150)

KNQC Aral Lid. Loans to affiiates 10,651,277 6,922,388
Korea Kamchatka Co. Limited Loans to affiiates 121,270,622 118,760,285
Valuation allowance (79,618,805 (77,108,467)

KG Kazakh B.V. Loans o affliates 45,795,619 35,846,668
ADAQILLLP Loans 1o affilates 13,081,452 -
"KNOC Ferghana Lid. |.oans to affliates 2,494,983 -
Total loans to affiiates W 4BB,698,9587 W 424,664,672

W {103,565811}

The Company charged ¥v25,638,873 thousand of other bad debt expense for the loans fo affliates in 2009 (W103,565,811 thousand

in 2008).

The outstanding balances with related parties other than those entities accounted for using the equity method as of December 31,
2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands);

Ralated parties Account 2009 2008
Employees Shori-term loans W 86,724 W 203,469
Gther non-current assets
(Long-term loans) 13,955,383 12,056,381
w 14,042,107 W 12,259,850

KMOC



9.

Property, plant and equipment

December 31, 2008 and 2008

Detalls of property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 ars as follows {Korean won in thousands):

2009
Cost ?:;;Q:i?gg% Net book value

tand W 211,941,376 W - W 211,941,376
Buildings 100,554,233 (22,432,116) 78,122,117
Structures 1,711,984 ,855 (399,423,570 1,312,561,285
Machinery and equipment 452,001,248 (351,482,068) 100,619,180
Vehlcles 2,535,360 (1,826,310) 709,040
Furniture and fixiures 32,819,168 (°6,053,667) 6,765,501
Oil prospecting vessels 51,863,953 (42,979,706} 8,884,247
Construction-in-progress 246,555,174 - 246,555,174

W 2,810,255367 W 844,197437) W 1,966,057,920

2008
Cost %i%lg]c?;?:r? Net book valus

Land W 201,222,320 W - W 201,222,320
Buildings 94,083,850 {20,000,123) 74,088,727
Structures 1,643,302,766 (318,909,864) 1,324,584,902
Machinery and equipment 386,625,601 {308,753,086) 89,832,515
Vehicles 2,154,042 {1,653,445) 500,587
Furniture and fidurss 30,306,151 (23,071,530) 7,234,621
Qil prospecting vessels 50,305,316 (40,459,271) 4,846,045
Construction-in-progress 258,955,020 - 258,955,020

W 2676061086 W (710,685,319 W 1,986,275,747

v

Accurmulated depraciation of structures as of December 31, 2009 included customers’ contribution to construction of structures

amounting to ¥ 1,683,217 thousand.
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Changes in the net beok value of property, plant and equipment for the years ended Decsmber 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows

{Korean won in thousands):

2009
Jan. 1, 2009 Increase Decraase Diapreciation Transfer Dec. 31, 2000

Land W 201,222,320 W - W (337 462) W -W o 11,056,518 W 211,841,376
Buildings 74,089,727 566,521 (134,140) (2,477,713) 8,077,722 78,122 117
Structures 1,324,504,902 3,844,831 (11,683,217 (69,032,489 64,837,258 1,312,561,285
Machinery and equipment 89,832,515 1,926,418 (4 (46,463,507) 56,223,758 100,518,180
Vehicles 500,597 559,802 (18} (449,567} 98,126 708,040
Furniture and fixtures 7,234,621 3,409,356 4,737) (3,873,739} - 8,765,501
Qll prospecting vessels 9,846,045 1,249,669 - (2,520,435} 308,968 8,884,247
Construction-in-progress 268,855,020 125,502,504 - - (137,602,350 246,555,174

W 1,966,275,747 W 136,759,201 W (12,159,578} W (124,817 450} W - W 1,866,057,920

2008
Jan. 1,2008 Increase Cecrease Depreciation Others Dec. 31,2008

Land W 194,921,626 W - W (135722) W - W BA36,417 ¥ 201,222,320
Buildings 72,952,119 6,552 {95,093 {2,355,726) 3,581,881 74,089,727
Struciures 963,230,425 49,779,935 {193) (43,578,337) 355,163,072 1,324,594,802
Machinery and equipment 74,924,762 2,650,370 ) (37,986,833 50,244,218 89,832,515
Vehicles 537,582 269,454 {4,587) (301,852) - 500,597
Furniture and fixtures 8,130,239 3,056,563 1,264) 4,024,414) 63,197 7,234,621
Qil prospecting vessels 9,307,893 2,210,416 - (2,793,294) 1,121,030 9,846,045
Canstruction-in-progress 593,066,795 82,497,918 - - (416,609,694) 258,955,020

Wo1,917,071,440 W 140,481,508 W (236,867) W (81,040456) W 121 W 1,966.275,747

The value of the Company's fand, as determined by the Government of the Republic of Korea for tax administration purposes, was
W347,373,087 thousand and W400,075,064 thousand as of Dacember 31, 2008 and 2008, respectively.
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December 31, 2009 and 2008

Instirance coverage under major insurance policies carried by the Company as of December 31, 2009 is as follows (Korean won in

thousands):
Description Insured assel/risk Amounts Insurance company
Center fire and others Buildings, machinery and equipment W 18,764,348  Donghu Insurance Co., Ltd. and cthers
Property ali risks Bulldings, siructures, machinery, suppliers UG insurance Co., Ltd. and others
and oll stociplle 14,482,379,008
Terrorism Facilities on land and sea Samsung Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Lid.
{except for seabed) 1706972444  and others
Buay Buoy and pipelines 39,602,915 Dongbu Insurance Co., Lid. and others
Drillship at all fsks Crillship {shipbody and equipment) 317,351,500  Donghut Insurance Co., Utd. and others
Donghae-1 gas fields Machinery and fidures . Hyundal Marine & Firs Insurance Co., Lid.
450,971,907  and others
Diractors’ professional Directors’ and executive officers’ liability Samsung Fire & Marine Insurance Co., Ltd.
indemnity insurance 50,000,000  andothers

10. Intangible assets

Details of intangible assets as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean wan in thousands):

2009 2008

Cit interests:
Expioration ki 1,148,834,758 W 644,800,121
Davelopment . 343,744,358 318,634,813
Production 2,104,290,550 2,220,668,956
3,596,869,666 3,184,103,830
Other intangible assets 5,898,329 5,504,432
W 3,602,867,995 W 3,189,608,322

Changes in the net book value of ofl interests for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows {Korean wen in

thousands):
2008
Jan, 1, 2002 Increase Decease Amortization Impairment loss  Othar changes @ Dec. 31, 2000

Ollinterests in

expioration W 644,800,121 W 529,190,215 W (503,601} W — W (24,651,977) W — W 1,148,834,758
Qilinterests in

development 318,634,813 25,100,545 - - - - 343,744,358
Ot interests in

produstion 2,220,668,056 168,382,491 - {331,149,067) - 46,388,170 2,104,290,550

W 3,184,103,890 W 722,682,251 W (603,801} W (331,149,067) W (24,661,977} W 46,388,170 ¥ 3,506,869,666

2009 annual report 73



Notes to financial statements|

11.

74

2008

Jan, 1, 2008 Increase Decease Amortization Impaimeantloss  Other changes©®  Dec, 31,2008
Cilinterests in i
explomiion W 331131648 W 327618835 W B.252041) W -W (BBI7421) W - W 644,800,121
Ofinterests in
devalopment 274,643,003 43,991,720 - - - - 318,634,813
Ol interests in
produstion 919,665,234 1,417,836,885 (503,304) (195,704,891) - 79,275,032 2,220,668,956

W 1525430975 W 1789547440 W (6,756,245 W (195,704,891) W [BEUrA21) W 79275032 W 3,184,103,890

Y Other changes represent increase or decreasa in provision for restoration costs,

Changes in the net book value of other intangible assets for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows (Korean
won in thousands):

2009
Jan. 1, 2009 Increase Dacease Amortization Dec. 31, 2009
Industrial property rights W 376 W - W - W - W 376
Development cosis 3,068,746 1,262,328 - (1,677,841) 2,633,233
Others 2,445,310 2,221,178 {8,281) (1,363,487) 3,364,720

W 5504432 W 3543506 W {8.281) W (3.041,328) W 5908329

2008
Jan. 1, 2008 Increase Decease Amortization Dec. 31, 2008
Industrial properly rights W 2107 W - W - W (1,731} W 376
Development costs 5,223,975 180,272 - (2.325,501) 3,068,746
Others 2,470,840 1,001,084 - (1,026,614) 2,445,310

W 7,696922 W 1,161,356

F
!

W (3353848 W 5504432

Other non-current assets

Other non-current assats as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows {Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
Loans 1o employees (see Note 8) W 13,855,383 W 12,056,361
Defined benefits plan assets {see Note 15) 11,105 -
Others 33,460,518 22,667,033
w 47 427,006 W 34,723,414
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12, Short-term borrowings

December 31, 2008 and 2008

Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
Lender - Korean won in Korean won i
Description  Interest rate (%) US dollars thousands US dollars thousands
BNP Parbas bank Ogeerngr',s AMLBORM $ 250,000,000 W 291,900,000 $ 250,000,000 W 314,375,000
" ¢ M LIBOR+2.4 200,000,000 233,520,000 200,000,000 251,500,000
ABN AMRO ! &M LIBOR+0.9 107,418,083 125,421,331 - —
BTMU “ 8M LIBOR+0.9 200,000,000 233,520,000 - -
DBS ¢ &M LIBOR+0.9 100,000,000 116,760,000 - -
Mizuho " 6M LIBOR+0.9 100,000,000 116,760,000 - -
ING ! 6M LIBOR+0.9 50,000,000 58,380,000 - -
Trading of oll .
Masefield stockpile 11M Libor + 2.5 58,025,293 67,750,332 — -
Deutsche Bank “ M Libor + 21 36,575,431 42,705,473 - -
" " M Lbor + 1.4 52,850,402 61,708,130 - -
Vitel “ M Lihor + 3.0 44,119,761 51,514,233 - -
General
Korea Development Bank operations 416 - 50,000,000 - -
ShinHan Bank " 416 - 50,000,000 - -
$ 198,983,950 W 1,499,930,499 § 450,000,000 W 565,875,000
13. Bonds payable and long-term borrowings
Bonds payable as of December 31, 2000 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):
Lender Jssuance daie Maturity date Annuai interest rate 2009 2008

Forsign curency debentures Feb. 4, 2009 Feb, 4, 2012 8M Libor+3.5% W 266,872,000 W -
" Jun. 24, 2009 Feb. 4, 2012 M Libor+3.4% 315,252,000 -

“ Jul, 36, 2009 Jul. 30, 2014 5.4% 1,167,600,000 -

{ ocal currency debentures Jun. 26,2008 Jun, 25, 2014 5.2% 100,000,000 -
1,839,724,000 -

Less: discount on bonds payable {21,622,618) -

W 1,815,101,382 W -

Long-term bomowings denominated in Korean won as of December 31, 2003 and 2008 are as follows (Korean wan in thousands):

Lendey Annual interest rate 2008 2008
SAER for pefroleum business 3.5%~4.0% Woo1,185,244,206 W 1,317,277 426
Less: curment porficn (214,226,824) (208,056,271)

W 981,017,381 W 1,100,221,155
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Long-term borrowings denominated in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in
thousands):

2008 2008

Annual interest

Lender
rate US dollars

Korean won in
equivalent

Karean won In

equivalent US dolars

SAER for lcan to 3rd party:

Borrowings for exploration and 2.0%0 $ 053278038 W 1184541505 § 797,948,344 W 1,003,421,300

praduciion
Berrowings for general operations 2.0% ~ 5.5% 89,854,779 104,914,440 125,324,003 157,004,934
Less: cument portion (25,451,902) (29,717,641} {35,489,224) {44,602,549)
1,017,680,915 1,258,738,304 887,804,123 1,116,413,685
SAER for KNOC:
Borowings for sxploration and 2.0%0 716,785,408 786,378,209 644,221,208 708,714,832
production :
Bomrowings far general operations 2.25% ~ 3.25% 126,117,270 147,254,525 167,085,154 210,109,581
Less: cumrent portion (49,261,794) (657.518,071) (40,267 ,884) £1,617,114)
793,640,972 B76,114,7563 770,338,473 862,307,299
Korea Development Bank:
Borrowings for general operations  3M Libor+4.25% 250,000,000 291,900,000 250,000,000 314,375,000
Leass: current portion - - {250,000,000) {314,375,000)
250,000,000 291,900,000 - -
Societe Genarale:
Borrowings for general operations  6M Libor+2.5% 50,000,000 58,380,000 -~ -
Lass: current portion (12,500,00C) (14,585,000} - -

37,500,000 43,785,000 - -

Bank of Communications Co., Lid.:
Boarrowings for general operations 3M Libor+3.8% 200,000,000 233,520,000
Less: cument portion - - - -

200,000,000 233,520,000 - -

$ 2,208,821,887 2,705,058,147 § 1,658,142,558 1,978,720,984

| ess; presant value discount (870,283 (33H1,345)
W 2,704,187,884 W 1,878,328,639

' The principal amount of these borrowings is to ba repaid on an instafiment basls dependent on the sucocessful commercial production
of oil. The Company's obligation to repay the principal amount wil be exempted If the exploration is proven to be unsuccessful and
withdrawn without any commerclal production in accordance with the policy of the MSF (No. 2002-315) on loans.
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14,

Decernber 31, 2009 and 2008

A summary of the repayment schecle of bonds payable and long-term borrowings as of December 31, 2008 is as follows {Korean
won in thousands):

Korean won Foreign currency Foreign currency
Year Bonds payable denominated denominated denominated Total
borrowings horrowings (SAER)  borrowings (bank}
2010 W — W 214226824 W 87235712 W 14,595,000 W 316,057,536
2011 - 184,385,051 70,298,765 306,495,000 561,178,816
2012 572,124,000 160,956,680 18,888,918 14,595,000 768,574,508
2013 - 150,421,880 26,006,575 14,695,000 191,023,755
2014 and thereafter 1,267,600,000 485,253,760 49,728,995 233,520,000 2,036,102,755

W 1,830,724,000 W 1,195244,206 W 252,168,965 W 583,800,000 W 3,870,237,170

Bomowings of ¥1,970,819,894 thousand that are dependent on ihe successiul commercial production of off as described above are
net included in the above repayment schedule of long-term borrowings.

Asset-backed securitization (“ABS”) liabilities

During 2008, the Company entered into a contract to borrow money in exchange for transferring futare trade recelvables from
Vietnam 15-1 off interests to be generated for the next five years with an overseas resources investment company under the Overseas
Resources Daveloprment Business Act. ABS liabilities as of Decermber 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won In thousands):

Description 2009 2008
Vietnam 15-1 ABS liabllittes W 50,454,439 W 94,006,508
Less: current poriion (20,606,885) {43,612,069)

W 20,847,564 W 50,454,429

15. Severance and retirement benefits

Changas in net carrying ameunt of the liability for severance and retirement benefits for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2008
ars as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
As of January 1, ki 49,668,138 W 44,569,637
Provision during the year 1,208,316 9,702,324
Payments diring the year (1,069,184} {4,703,733)
49,207,270 49,568,138
Less: defined benefit plan assets {49,207,270) (39,367,020)

As of December 31, W - id 10,201,118
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Datails of the funded plan assets Linder the DB plan as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
Short-term and long-term
financial Instruments W 18,103,306 W 32,558,671
Investment securitios 20,240,742 5,406,290
l.oans 506,122 618,119
Others 10,368,205 783,940
W 49,218,375 W 39,367,020

The DE plan is partially funded by the Company (100% funded in 2009 and 79% funded in 2008) and the plan’s assets are managead

by Samsung Life Insurance Co., Ltd. and Kyobo Life Insurance Co., Lid.

Agsets and liabfities denominated in foreign currencies as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

2009 2008
Foreign currencles K{mgﬁt\'ggg St;gzi:)a!eﬂt Foreign curencies Kgqrﬁgwr;kawr?tn
{in thousands)
Assels:

Short-term and long-term USS  1,043,132817 W 1289456036 US$ 923,334,297 W 1,161,082,878
loans! Uss 291,550,452 340,414,308  US$ 74,257,854 93,404,333
Trade accounts receivable us$ 48,764,847 58,105,435 US$ 18,165,440 22,843,041
Other accounis receivable CAD 63,189 89950 - - -
Other current assels Us$ 27,211,332 31,771,851 US§ 18,119,137 22,764,815
ALD 573,373 792,655 ALD 573,373 408,835
Cash and cash equivalents uss$ 55,235,674 64,493,173 US$ 85,561,228 107,593,244
CAD 469,482,001 519,711,881 CAD 478,770 497,112
SGD 24,757 20,580 8GD 8,670 7,591
PEN - - PEN 4,268,798 1,708,013
Total assets US$  1,466,805,122 W 2304835973 US$ 1119437956 W 1,410,430,862

AUD 573,373 AUD B73,.373

CAS 469,545,190 CAS 478,770

s8GD 24,757 8GD 8670

PEN - PEN 4,268,798

Liabilities:
Short-term bomowings UsS$  1,198,988,050 W 1,309,939.499 US$ 450,000,000 W 565875000
Current portion of long-term borrowings uss 87,213,698 101,830,711 US$ 326,437,108 410,494,663
| ong-term borrowings Us$ 2,008,821,887 2,705,058,147 US$  1,658,142,586 1,978,720,984
Bonds payable US$  1,490,000,000 1,739,724,000 USS$ - -
Othar accounts payable US$ 217,889,607 254413581 US$ 336,109,028 422,657,103
GBP 196,395 368,777 GBP 35,247 64,248
KNOC



December 31, 2008 and 2008

2009 2008
Korean won Korean won
Foreign cumencies eguivalent Foreign currencles equivalent
{in thousands) {in thousands}
EUR 79,677 133,401 EUR - -
3GD 148,965 123,830 SGD 1,314,382 1,160,741
CAD 731,241 809,476 CAD 1,968,538 2,043,953
Other long-tarm: fiabiiities usg 216,042,518 252,251,244 US$ - -
Total liabifities US$ 5508066658 W 6454658666 US$ 2770688732 W 3,381,006,602
GBP 186,395 GBP 35,347
EUR 79,677 EUR -
SGD 148,965 SGD 1,314,382
CAD 731,241 CAD 1,968,538

1 Translation gains {losses) on loans and borrowings denorminated In forelgn currencies associated with exploratory oil fislds are not
recognized untl the development of ofl fields is proven to be successful (see Note 2).

17. Valuation of receivables and payables at present value

The present value and related discounis on short-term and long-term recsivables and payables arising from long-term installment
transactions ar with unfavorable credit terms as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009
’ Present
Company .Intergz‘; rate Maturity Nagqrgiz\:tl Prz‘alsale;g N :{i lﬁ
Short-term and long-term loans denominated in - SK Energy
Toreign currencies Co., Ltd. 5~7 2010~2012 W 1,365660 W 1,227,183 W {138,507)
Longrterm borrowings, including current portion,  SK Energy
denominated in foreign currencies Co., Lid. 4~8 2010 ~ 2012 1,365,660 1,208,566 (156,004}
Lang-term tradie accounts receivable DOPCO  Floating rates
reset quarterly 2011 - 2012 57,465,253 51,394,709 {6,070,544)
tong-ferm trade accounts payable DOPCO  Floating rates
reset quarterly 2011 ~ 2012 51,615,022 46,608,499 {4,046,523)
Trade accounts receivable DOPCO  Floating rates
reset quartetly 2040 13483016 10,563,965 (2,629,051}
Trade accounts payable DOPCC  Foating rates
resetquarterly 2010 11,741,867 9,362,601 (2,375,266)
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2008
. Present
Company |ﬂtel’(805‘;t) rate Maturity E?nrzﬁfi Pri;?ﬁ; value
discount
Short-term and long-term loans denominated  SK Energy
in foreign currencies Go., Lid. 55~7  2000~2012 W 3,190,884 W 2840733 W  (350,151)
|Long-term borrowings, including current SK Energy
portion, denominated in foreign currencies Co., Lid. 4-6 2009 ~ 2012 3,180,884 2,769,538 {391,346)
Long-term trads accounts receivable DOPCO  Hoating rates
reset quarterly 2010 ~ 2012 61,468,012 54,208,205 10,378,841)
Long-term trade accounts payable DOPCO  Foating rates
reset quarterly 2010~ 2012 56,014,112 49,052,657 (8,494,651)
Trade accounts receivable DOPCO  Floating rates
reset quarterly 2009 15,343,060 15,343,060 -
Trade accounts payable BOPCO  Floating rates
reset guartertly 2000 13,570,202 18,570,202 -

The collection schedule of loans to SK Incheon Ol Co., Lid., for which the Company borrowed from the SAER under the policy of
the MSF and made the loans, was rescheduled from the period 2001 to 2005 to the period 2005 to 2012 as a result of the court
receivership order delivered on March 25, 2003. As such, the repayment schedule for the Company’s borrowings from the SAER was
rescheduled accordingly. SK Incheon Oil Co., Lid. was merged with SK Energy Co., Lid, on February 1, 2008,

Since Daehan Oil Pipeline Co., Ltd, (‘DOPCO”), previously a government-controlled corporation, was privatized, and the Company
provided a loan fo DOPCO through borrowings from the SAER under the policy of the MSF, In 2002, the original collection schedule for
the pericd 2002 to 2007 was rescheduled to the period 2007 to 2012, The repayment scheduie for the Company's bormowings from
the SAER was also rescheduled accordingly. As a result, the Gompary accounted for bad debt expense of ¥1,739,788 thousand
and 3,601,207 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008, respectively. Further, the Company recorded gains
from liabiities exempled of ¥¥1,364,335 thousand and ¥3,021,375 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008,
respectively.

Provision for restoration costs

The Company accounts for the present value of restoration costs relating to sfructures, and machinery and equipment of ¢ll fislds of
oil fields as a provision for liablity {see Note 2). As of December 31, 2009, the Company's provision for restoration costs for the Peru
8 and Donghas-1 properties amounted o 'W4,671,420 thousand and ¥¥85,339,415 thousand, respectively. For the Vietnam 15-
1, Vistnam 11-2, England Captain and Taylor properties, the Gompany's provision for restoration costs amounted o W10,421,700
thousand, ¥¥14,167,740 thousand, ¥76,969,848 thousand and W58,506,100 thousand, respactively, as of December 31, 2009,

Changes in the net carrying amount of the provision for restoration costs during 2008 and 2008 are as fofows (Korean won in
thousands):

2008 2008
As of January 1, W 188874347 W 116,366,671
Provision during the year 11,958,761 8,216,485
Adjustments during the year 49,242,095 64,290,691
As of December 31, 250,076,223 186,874,347
| ess: daposils for restoration costs (2,702,444} (2,004,384)

W 247,369,779 W 186,809,953

®  Adjustments include changes in estimated restoration costs and additional obligations assurned from acguisitions of of fislds,

KNG



Decambar 31, 2008 and 2008

19, Commitments and contingencies

{i As of Decernber 31, 2008, the Compary is a defendant in three pending lawsuits with total claims amaunting to 6,932,118 thousand
and a plaintiff in ane pending lawsuit against the three individuals amounting to W554,502 thousand. The outcomes of these pending
fawsits and their impact on the Compary's fnancial statements cannot presently be determined as of December 31, 2008,

{i) The Cormpany has obtained guarantees of US$598,178,180 in total from BNP Parlbas Bank and Standard Charted Bark, the
Export-import Bank of Korea and of 1,252,639 thousand from Seoul Guaranies Insurance Company associated with purchase of
oil interests, exploration of OPL 321/323 cil fields, borrowing agresment with Generale Soclste for acquiring OIG and restoration of
Donghae-1 gas fields as of December 31, 2000,

i) As of December 31, 2008, the Company has guarantess provided by non-related parties for the Company's obligations and
indebiedness as follows (Korean wen in thousands, US dollarsh:

Guarantee received from Guaranteed amount Description of guarantee
BNP Paribas US$ 248,178,180  Guarantee for exploration of OPL 321/323 cil fields
Standard Chartered Bank US$ 300,000,000 "
The Export-lmport Bank of Karea Us$ 50,000,000 Borrowing agreament with Generale Sociste for acquiring CIG
Seoul Guarartee Insurance Co., Lid. W 1,252,638 Restoration of Donghas-1 gas fiekds

(v} As of December 31, 2008, the Compeny has provided the following guarantee as follows (US dollars in thousands):

(Guarantes provided to Guaranteed amount Description of guarantee
Yemen LNG Company Ltd, Us$ $32,831 Guarantee for project finandng for Maribe LNG wells

{v) In November 2007, a consortium led by the Comparty and SK Energy Co., Ld. entered into an agreement Tor exploration and
production in Bazian off fields, located In irag, with the Kurdistan regional government, in accordance with the local Kurdish ol
exploration laws. [n January 2008, the Company and other participating companies were notified by the Iragi federal government
that such agreement, without obtaining proper approval fram the federal gavernment, would be invalid. The oil interests in
exploration of ¥27,254,331 thousand are accounted for as an equity method investmenit and loan to an affilate as of December
31, 2009. The Company was advised by legal consultants in England and in Irag that there is no legal basis on the above afleging
nullity of the agreement.

In return for acquiring the rights of sight ol exploratory wells from the Kurdistan regional governiment, the Comparny paid US$0.2 bilion
of signing borus and is committed to provide US$1.9 bilion of Soclal Overhead Capital (‘SCC") construction. As of December 31,
2008, the Company recognized the asseis and liabiities in the amount of US$0.4 bilon associated with the SOC constructions ordered
firmiy by the Kurdistan regional government and the remaining US$1.5 billion of SOG constructions were not recognized as their timing
of expenditures could not be reasonably estimated. With respact to the signing benus paid and SOC related asset, the Comparny
accounted for W763,800,072 thousand as ol interests in exploration, and the corresponding SCC related liablity of w163,288,210
thousand as other acocounts payable and W230,742,018 thousand as other long-term liablities as of Decermber 31, 2002,
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20. Derivative financial instruments
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Commaodity swaps

The Company entered infe commodity swaps to hedge the exposure to changes in the fair value and the variabifty in future cash flows of
petrclsum inventories. Details of the coniracts as of December 31, 2008 are presented as follows {Korsan won in thousands, BBL: Barrels):

Sellor  Quantity Contract Fair Valuation

Objective Counter-party Due date by (BBL) price valie gain ioes)

Fair value hedge Morgan Stanley and others 2010.1.31 Buy 1000000 W 85071,336 ¥ 01040448 W 5978112
Cashi flow hedge Morgan Stanley and others 20161231 Sefl 1,790,000 157,165,382 172,759,731 {15,504,349)
Cash flow hedge Morgan Stanley and others 20101231 Sell 790,000 65,602,042 66,586,724 (984,582)

In cornection with valuation gain on petrolsum commodity swaps designated as a fair velue hedge instrumsnt, the Company
recognized a loss from the corresponding firm commitment equal to such gain.

Zero-cost coilar option

The Company purchased a zem-cost collar option to hedge the exposure to variabillity in future cash flows of oil to be produced in the Taylor
properties located in thas United States. Detalis of the contracts as of Decembet 31, 2008 are presented as follows (Korean won in thousands):

Sellor  Quantity Contract Fair Valuation

Objective Counter-party Due date by B8 price valus gain Joss)

Cashflowhedge Morgan Stanley and others  2010.1.31 Sell 2,300,000 W 241,893,200 W 215,371,456t W 26,321,740

¥ Gain an vaiuation from the options above consists of an intrinsic value cormponent of W21,074,304 thousand and a time value
cormponent of W5,247,445 thousand as of December 31, 2009,

Currency forward contracts

The Company entered inte currency forward contracts to hedge the exposurs to change in fair value due fo foreign exchange rates on
bonds payable derominated in foreign currency. Datalls of the contracts as of December 31, 2009 are presented as follows {Korean
won in thousands, US dollars):

Notioniat Notional . :
Objective Cotinter-party Due date Sgll O amount in ameunt in VFBTL;L Va:g:gon
us$) (KRW)

Fair value hedge DES and cthers  201226/2012622  Buy 490,000,000 ¥ 600,161,310 W 588,077,025 W (12,084,285}

Koo



21. Paid-in-capital

Decermber 31, 2008 and 2008

The Company's paid-in capital is invested solely by the Korean government in accordance with the Korean Oil Corporation Act and the

authorized paid-in capital is W10 %illion as of December 31, 2009,

The changes in paid-in capital during the years endad December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2008

As of January 1, 2008
Increases during 2009
Fabruary 26 (contributed for olf stockpiling business)
March 19 [contribuied for ofl stockplling business)
March 23 (contributed for exploring and developing oil fields}
April 9 (contributed for ol stockpiling business)
Aprit 28 (contributed for exploring and developing ofl fields)
May 25 (contributed for ofl stockpiling business)
June 12 (centributed for oil stockpiling business)
June 23 (contributed for exploring and developing ol fields)

August 28 (contrisuted for exploring and daveloping oil fields)

Septernber 22 ([contributed for oll stockpiling business)

September 25 (contributed for exploring and developing oil fields)
Cctobar 26 (contributed for off stockpiling business)

Navember 6 (contributed for exploring and developing oil fields)
November 30 (contributed for exploring and developing oll fields)
December 24 (contributed for exploring and developing oil fields)

As of Decernber 31, 2009

W 5,914,814,780

40,000,000
30,000,000
100,000,000
40,000,000
110,000,000
20,000,000
35,000,008
110,000,000
50,000,000
20,000,000
45,000,000
40,202,000
40,000,000
40,000,000
14,400,000
734,602,000
W 6,8649,416,780

2008

As of January 1, 2008

Increases during 2008:
February 15 (contributed for oil stockpiling business)
February 18 (contributed for oll stockpiling business)
June 30 (contributed for ofl stockpiling business)
August 6 {contributed for oll stockpiling business)
August 6 {contributed for exploring and developing il fields)
September 5 (contributed for oil stockpiling business)
Septernber 29 {contribuled for exploring and developing oil fields)
Novermber 3 {contributed for exploring and developing oil fields)
Novernber 14 {contribuled for off stockpliing business)

December 18 {contributed for ofl stockpliing business}

As of Decemnber 31, 2008

W 4,684,912,780

45,000,000
100,000,000
112,032,000

33,338,000

64,700,000

26,000,000
200,000,000
600,000,000

14,762,000

35,070,000

1,229,902,000
W 5914,814,780
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22. Retained earnings
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Retained earnings of the Company as of December 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
Appropriated refained earnings:
Legal reserve W 585143747 W 537,966,236
Reserve for business expansion 583,700,125 536,522,614
1,168,843,872 1,074,488,850
Unappropriated retained eamings 422,291,952 119,492,986

W 1,501,135,824 W 1,193,961,836

Legal reserve

In accordance with the Korean Ol Gorporation Act, an amount equat 1o at least 20% of net income for each accounting pericd is
reqired to be appropriated as a legal reserve until the reserve equals 50% of paid-in capital after having offset an accumulated deficit
with net income for the current vear. The legal reseive may be transferred to the paid-in capital.

Reserve for business expansion

The Korean Oil Gorporation Act reguires the Company to appropriate, from retained earnings, an amount equal o at least 20%
of net income for each accounting period as a reserve for business expansion until the raserve equals paid-in capital after having
appropriated for the legal reserve. This reserve may be used to offset an accumulated deficit.

Accumulated other comprehensive income

Details of accumulated other comprehensive income (loss} of the Gompany as of December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean
won in thousands):

2002 2008
Gain on valuation of avallable-for-sale securities Moo ® W 2,158,559 W 206,077
Capiial adjustment arising from equity method investments Nofe?) (23,785,922) 1,223,278
Foreign currency translation adjustments ®oe3 174,687,201 245,097 484
Gain on valuation of derivative instruments Moie20 3,407 417 135,871,439

W 158,467,256 W 382,308,278

KMOC



December 31, 2009 and 2008

24. Comprehansive income

The detalis of comprehensive income for the years ended Dacember 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands);

2009 2008
Net income W 422,201,952 W 200,192,741
Other comprehensive income (loss):
Gain {loss) on valuation of avaiable-for-sale securities, less tax efiect of
W28,516 thousand in 2009 and W{185,811) thousand in 2008 1,052,482 (980,890)
Equity adjustment arising from equity method investments, less tax effect of
W(6,891,705) thousand In 2009 and W282,854 thousand in 2008 (25,009,200) 991,257
Foreign currency translation adjustments, less tex effect of
W{(24,088,608} thousand in 2008 and W63,200,828 thousand in 2008 (70,410,283 252,915,888
Gain {loss} on valuation of derivative instruments, less tax effect of
W(39,899,457) thousand n 2000 and w41,0687,313 thousand in 2008 (132,464,022) 135,871,440
(225,931,023) 388,797,605
Comprehensive income W 196,260,928 W 588,990,438

25. Loss on prior period etror corrections

The Company accountad for the loss on prior period errors comection associaled with understated amortization prior to 2009 in
Elephant oil well in Libya as non-operating loss in 2008,

26. Income taxes

For the financial year ended December 31, 2008, the Company s subject to corporate income taxes, including resident surtax, at the
aggregate rates of 12.1% {12.1% in 2008) on taxable income up to W200 millon and 24.2% (27.5% in 2008) on taxable income in
axcass of w200 million.

The components of the provision for income texes for the years snded December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Karean won in

thousands}:

2009 2008
Current Incoms taxes W 173,895,794 W 177,775,542
Dafarred income taxes arising from 1ax effect of ternporary differences (18,360,544} 98,345,610
Deferred income taxes recegnized directly to equity 71,106,286 (104,756,108
Provision for income iaxes W 226,651,536 W 171,365,044
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Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effecis of ternporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and llabilities for
financial reporting purposas and the amounts used for corporate income tax reporting purposes. Significant changes in cumidetive
ternporary differences and deferred income tax assets and liabiities for the years ended Decernber 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows

(Korean won in thousands):

2009
Defered
Jan, 1,2009 mﬁ% Doc8,2000 oM Cuent Nonouret

(iatfties)
Accrued income W BA78IT0) W 1701162 W BBET.008) W [BO2256 W ([B92.206) W -
Gain on foreign currency Translation 130356202 (¥63456,720)  (324,100518) (78432325  (7B.A432,325) -
Allowance for doubtful Accounts - 121448483 121448463 26,718,662 — 26718882
Severance & retirement benefits 28,970,190 8320033 37,291,132 8,204,049 — 8,204,049
Deposits for severance & ratirement benefits (28,970,199 8,320,933 (37,291,132 (8,204,049 - 8,204,049
lmpaiment loss on avallable-for-sale securities 6,037,299 - 6,037,209 1,328,206 - 1,328,206
Equity in eamings from overseas

oil intarests (KNOG USA) (8295702  (BO756535  @8063237 1,571,712 - P1571,713)
Capital adjustment from overseas

of interests (KNOC USA) pI195R A0 105214580 (114317,751)  (25,149,905) - 25149909
Eauity in earmings from overseas

of nterests [KCCL) (Mdo262360) (183203540 (167,582,714) (36,858,197} - (36888199
Dividend from overseas of interests KCCL - 26272,184 26,272,184 5,779,880 - 5,779,880
Capital adjustment from overseas .

oll interests (KCCL) (67,744,161} 42979115 634650668 (13,962,315 —  {13862,315)
Equity in loss of equity method invesiments (2,527,523 37415418 34,887 895 7,675,337 - 7675337
Capital adjusiment arising from ‘ .

equlty method investrents {1,285,704) 3,780,476 WA4772 6,708,850 - 6,708,850

Depreciation 8,771,020 62,340,194 61,111,214 13,444,468 - 13,444,468
Armoertization 3,085,024 2,064,381 6,049,405 1,330,869 - 1,330,869
Present value discount {8,305,965) 1,491,462 {7.394.533 (1789477 (1,7B9A477)
Ol interests in prochiction (62,849,200) FO76087)  B9925237  (15,383552) ~  (15383552)
Provision for restoration costs 110,493,062 6,710,129 117203191 26,784,702 - 25,784,702
impairment loss on ol interests 45474205 24.636,396 70,110,601 15,424,332 - 15,424,332
Depreciation - Perts (10,917,709 10,817,709 - - - -
Restoration costs - Peru 642,345 {642,345) - - — -
Avallable-for-sale securities BHA17) (1,925,566 {2,767,383) {B08,824) - {08,824
Gain on vakuation of derivatives

{capital adjusiment) {176958,753) 172463479 495274  {1,087858)  (1,087.856) -
Loss on valuation of dervatives 113,379,873 {107273,800) 6,106,173 1,211,840 (1,446,703) 2,658,543
Gain on valuation of firn commitments (306,330,564 300,224,391 6,106,173 (1,211,840 1,446,703 (2,658,543)
Cthers 85,985,571 86704568 122780230 26012248  (1,093436) 28005684
Total W (536,785,887} W 277,302429 W (250,393,458) W (64,638,865 W {83,265,350) W 18,666,485
Tax raies 24.2%, 22% 24.2%, 22%

Deferred income tax liabilities, net W {82,880,400) W {54,638,865)

KOS



December 31, 2008 and 2008

2008
Deferred
Jan. 1,2008 dg%es Dec.t,2008 T Gyt Nonurent
{iabiiies)

Accrued income w (2221522) w (3266048 W (HATBITO) w (1325717 W (138717 W -
Gain on foreign curency Translation - 139,366,202 139,356,202 33,724,201 33,724,201 —
Severance & refirerment bensfits 28,970,199 - 28,970,199 6,373,444 ~ 6373444
Deposits for severance & retirement benefits (28,870,199 - (28,570,199 (6,373,444} - 6,373,444
Impairment loss on avallable-for-sale securities 6,037,295 - 6,037,299 1,328,206 - 1,328,206
Equiity in eamings from overseas

oil interests (KNOC USA) - {38208,702  (38206,702) (8425274 - B.425,274
Capital adiustrment from overseas

ofl inferests KNOG USA) ~ (2195323100 (219532310) (48,207,108 - (48,287,108}
Equity in earnings from overseas

ollinterests {KCCL) (G4350688  BASMETE  (149.262,350) - -
Capital adiustment from overseas

ol interests {KCCL) {14,700074) 53044100 (67744181 {14,903720) - (14903720
Equity In loss of equity method invesiments 612,532 {,914,891) {2,527,523) {556,055) - (556,055
Capital adjustment arising from

equity method invesiments {11592) {1.274.112) {1.285,704) {282,855) - (282,855)
Depreciation 8,771,020 - 8,771,020 1,929,624 - 1,920,624
Amortization 6,514,837 2529813 3805024 876,705 - 876,705
Present value discount (8,265,404} (520,591 8885595  @.15041 '1) 2,150,411} -
Cll interests in production (59,519,012 {2.930,188  E2,849200) (13826824 - (13826,824)
Provision for vestoration costs S7.581,004 12912068 110,493,062 24,308,474 - 24308474
Impairment loss on ail interests 30,776,784 5,697,421 45,474,205 10,004,325 - 10,004,325
Deprediation - Peru (1) {3,811 901 2804282 (10917.708) (3275319 - (3275313
Restoration costs - Peru {1 1,637,538 (595,193 642,345 192,703 - 192,703
Avaable-for-sale securities (1,637,195) 785,778 B1,417) (185,112) - (185,112)
Gain on valuation of dervatives

{capital acfustment) -~ {I76058,753) {i76958753) (1087313  @3720265 (17,367,048
Loss on valuation of dervatives - 113.378973 113379873 27437553 27437953 -
Gain on valuation of fim commitments - ({308,330564 {30R,330564)  (pT392,724) - Br3R724)
Others (2) 48,525,106 37,480,465 85,985,571 18916826 - 18,916,626
Total W 43313578 w (580,009.465) W (536,785807) w (82,989409) W 33965761 w (116,955,170)
Tax rates 275% 24.2%, 22%
Deferred income tax assets (iabilties), net W 15358201 W (82,959,400)

0 Deferred incoma tax assets and liabilties arising from these temporary differences in Peru as of December 31, 2008 ars
calculeded based on the expected local marginal income tax rate of 30.0%.

¥)  The effect of change in accounting policy prior to 2008 was adjusted as of January 1, 2008,
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27.
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A reconciiiation of the provision for incoms texes applicable to income before income taxes at the Korea statutory tax rate to the
pravigion for income taxes at the effactive income tax rate of the Company is as foliows (iKorean won in thousands):

2009 2008

income before income taxes W 648,543488 W 371,557,785
Tax at the statutory income tax rate (2009: 24.2%, 2008: 27.5%) 167,020,124 102,178,391
Adiustments:

Expenses not decuctible for tax purposes (2009: W46,484,486, 2008: W176,058,753) 11,251,666 48,663,657

Income not subject to tax purposes (2009: W28,781, 2008: 199,613,808 (6,967) (27,393,822

Recognition of previously Lnrecognized defarred income tax : 32,837,718 -

Income taxes difference from overseas investees 33,146,565 83,943,608

Cthers (7,697,571) (36,026,880)
Pravision for income taxes at the effective income tax rate of 34.93% (2008: 46.12%) W 226,851,536 W 171,365,044
Dividends

“The dividend rates for the years ended December 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2000 2008
Cash dividends (A R 67,658,074 W 25,137,964
Paid-in capital {B) W 6,642,416,780 W 5914,814,780
Dividend rate (A/B) 1.016% 0.425%

The ¢ividend payout ratios for the years ended Decernber 31, 2009 and 2008 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008
Cash dividends (A} ¥ 67,558,074 W 25137964
Net income (B) 422,291,952 200,182,741
Dividend payout ratio (A/B) 16.00% 12.56%
KRGS



December 31, 2008 and 2008

28. Selling and administrative expenses

Detals of selling and administrative expenses for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008 are as follows (Kerean won in

thousands):
2009 2008

Salaries W 36625806 W 37,431,857
Provision for severance and retirement benefits 1,130,296 4,837,014
Othar employee benefits 4,626,757 6,874,551
Travel 525,495 919,284
Communications 327,603 278,610
Utitities 322,865 379,790
Taxes and public dues 865,028 3,036,192
Supplies 221,862 231,190
Clothing 115,128 113,619
Books and printing . 233,814 180,261
Rent 149,860 60,863
Depreciation 2,726,908 2,625,055
Amortization 2,868,788 3,179,163
Malntenance 1,339,288 1,033,607
Vehicle maintenance 209,923 702,774
Insurance 112,506 64,316
Cornmissions and fees 6372377 3,280,152
Entertainment 312,807 161,999
Advertisement 644,329 634,282
Training 2,189,721 1,973,647
Research 4,130 4,185
Rewards 119,468 73,694
Registry and legal fees 96,521 458,973
Association B 242,207 237,702
Development expense 12,472,299 0,168,758
Miscelfaneous 626,955 623,641

W 75462842 W 78,574,679
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29. Value added information

In accordance with SKAS 21 Preparation and Presentation of Financial Statements, the “value added” items as defined by the
standard, which are required to be disclosed by the Company for the years ended December 31, 2008 and 2008, are as follows (Korean
won in thousands):

2009 2008
Salaries W 73,980,306 W 82,611,282
Severance and retiement benefits 2,181,038 10,102,563
Employes benefits 11,242,150 14,558,682
Rental expense 2,388,470 2,358,430
Depreciation 124,817,450 91,040,456
Amortization 334,190,395 199,068,737
Taxes and dues 7,973,548 10,616,008

30. Environmental consideration

Tha Company has established erwironmental objectives from mic-term to long-tenm and detalled strategies to meet its objectives.
They are executed in preparation for the potential safety problems and the Company's inherent business risks, including contamination
or poliution of water, soil and seabed that may occur during the consiruction of stockpiling faciliies, development of petroleum
resources or preservation of oil in reserve stock.

To ensure both systematic implementation of snvironmental policles and efficlency of allocation and investrent of resources, the
Company adopted 1SO 14000 in 1998 and has been oparating under the system,

31. Employee welfare, contributions to society and human resources development

For employee weifare, the Company maintains a refeciory, an infirmary, athletic facilities, a scholarship fund, workmen’s accident
compensation insurance, medical insurance, and other banefits,

The Cormpany donated 4,178,002 thousand and W36, 130 thousand to support ofl development and others for the years endad
December 31, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Expenditures associated with development of speclalization in human resources during the years ended Decernber 31, 2008, 2008
and 2007 are as follows (Korean won in thousands):

2009 2008 2007 Totat
Training W 3271486 W 2748306 W 2412353 W 8432235
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32. Segment information

The Company engages in the following major businesses, and sales by the business segments for the years ended December 31,
2009 and 2008 are as follows {Korean won in thousands):

Segment iain goods {or services)
Cil resource development Expiloration, development and production of domestic and overseas ol resources
Stockpiling of oif imports and experts of crude ofl and petrateum products; lending and sales of dll stockplle; management,
operation and lending of of stockpiing faciities
Financing Financing for companies engaging in energy and natural resources industries
Drillship: chartering Drillship chartering business
Other Incidental income from the above businesses
2009 2008
Oil resource development W 1,271,418,223 W 1,115,161,216
Stockpiling of o 366,137,737 130,950,134
Financing 94,413,337 382,100,137
Drllship chartering 54,344,769 108,242,397
QOther 13,737,715 11,016,624

W 1,800,061,781 W 1,747.479,508

33. Supplementary cash flow information

Sigrificant transactions not involving cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2008 and the 2008 are as follows (Korean won in

thousands);

2009
Incraase In long-term other accounts receivable with a coresponding increase in construction subsidy w 11,683,217
Increase in equity method investments with a comesponding increase in other leng-term liabiities 125,643,986
Tncrease In of Inferests in exgloration with a comesponding increass in other accounts payable and other long-term liabilities 421,309,482
Decrease in dervative assets due to the valuation foss 161,895,839

34. Approval of 2009 financial statements

The financial siatements of the Company for the yeer ended December 31, 2009 are scheduled 1o be approved at the Board of
Directors’ meeting to be held on February 23, 2010,
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